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From: Kathryn Irby
To: "Jp Phillips"
Cc: Sherri Robinson
Subject: Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008 -- info request
Date: Thursday, November 29, 2018 11:14:00 AM

Mr. Phillips,
 
The Claims Commission has reviewed the answer filed by UAMS in the above-referenced claim and
requests additional information from Claimant regarding whether Claimant has or is going to file a
workers comp claim related to her injury.
 
Please advise.
 
Thanks,
Kathryn Irby
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From: Jp Phillips
To: Kathryn Irby
Cc: Kathy Ryan
Subject: Re: Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008 -- info request
Date: Monday, December 3, 2018 11:46:12 AM

Kathryn, 

Mrs. Westcott has no workers compensation coverage, so I have no additional documentation
to provide. We can supply an affidavit of no coverage signed by Mrs. Westcott if the
Commission wants us to. 

Thanks, 

On Thu, Nov 29, 2018 at 11:15 AM Kathryn Irby <Kathryn.Irby@arkansas.gov> wrote:

Mr. Phillips,

 

The Claims Commission has reviewed the answer filed by UAMS in the above-referenced
claim and requests additional information from Claimant regarding whether Claimant has or
is going to file a workers comp claim related to her injury.

 

Please advise.

 

Thanks,

Kathryn Irby

 

 

-- 

JP Phillips
Attorney

Taylor King Law, P.A.
1306 South Caraway Road, Jonesboro Arkansas, 72401
Main: (501) 205 8773| Fax: (501) 205 8755 | JPPhillips@TaylorKingLaw.com

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTE:
The information in this email or facsimile message is legally privileged and confidential information intended only for the use of the addressee(s). If
the reader of this message is not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that ANY DISSEMINATION, DISTRIBUTION OR COPYING OF
THE EMAIL IS STRICTLY PROHIBITED.  If you receive this transmission in error, please immediately notify us by telephone and return the
original message to us by U.S. Mail to 320 Main Street, Arkadelphia, AR 71923.
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TAYLOR KING AND ASSOCIATES ACCEPTS NO LIABILITY FOR ANY DAMAGE CAUSED BY ANY VIRUS TRANSMITTED BY
EMAILS.
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From: Robinson, Sherri
To: Kathryn Irby; Jp Phillips
Cc: Kathy Ryan
Subject: RE: Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008 -- info request
Date: Thursday, December 6, 2018 11:53:11 AM

May 17 is good for me.
 
Congrats, JP!
 
Sherri
 

From: Kathryn Irby [mailto:Kathryn.Irby@arkansas.gov] 
Sent: Thursday, December 06, 2018 11:11 AM
To: Jp Phillips <jpphillips@taylorkinglaw.com>; Robinson, Sherri <SLRobinson@uams.edu>
Cc: Kathy Ryan <kathyryan@taylorkinglaw.com>
Subject: RE: Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008 -- info request
 
JP, a baby is an excellent reason to move around a hearing docket – congratulations on the
upcoming addition to your family!
 
JP and Sherri, I can move the hearing to Friday, May 17?
 
Thanks,
Kathryn
 
From: Jp Phillips <jpphillips@taylorkinglaw.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, December 05, 2018 10:38 AM
To: Robinson, Sherri <SLRobinson@uams.edu>
Cc: Kathryn Irby <Kathryn.Irby@arkansas.gov>; Kathy Ryan <kathyryan@taylorkinglaw.com>
Subject: Re: Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008 -- info request
 
Kathryn, 
 
I believe we'll be fine in regard to discovery but I have a baby due in mid-March and I'm bit
nervous about a hearing so close to our due date. Could we bump it back a month?
 
Thanks, 
 
On Tue, Dec 4, 2018 at 10:41 AM Robinson, Sherri <SLRobinson@uams.edu> wrote:

I think that date will be fine. Thanks.
 
Sherri L. Robinson | Associate General Counsel
University of Arkansas for Medical Sciences
4301 W. Markham, Slot #860
Little Rock, AR  72205
Phone:  501-686-7964 | Fax:  501-686-7736

E.1

192

mailto:SLRobinson@uams.edu
mailto:SLRobinson@uams.edu
mailto:Kathryn.Irby@arkansas.gov
mailto:Kathryn.Irby@arkansas.gov
mailto:jpphillips@taylorkinglaw.com
mailto:jpphillips@taylorkinglaw.com
mailto:kathyryan@taylorkinglaw.com
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
Sent: Tuesday, December 04, 2018 10:35 AM
To: Jp Phillips <jpphillips@taylorkinglaw.com>
Cc: Robinson, Sherri <SLRobinson@uams.edu>; Kathy Ryan <kathyryan@taylorkinglaw.com>
Subject: RE: Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008 -- info request
 
JP and Sherri, I am setting this claim for hearing on Friday, April 12, 2019. Please let me know if
that will not give the parties sufficient time to complete discovery. Otherwise, we will send
correspondence confirming the scheduling.
 
Thanks,
Kathryn
 
 
Kathryn M. Irby
Arkansas State Claims Commission
101 East Capitol Avenue
Suite 410
Little Rock, Arkansas 72201
(501) 682-2822
 
 
 
From: Jp Phillips <jpphillips@taylorkinglaw.com> 
Sent: Monday, December 03, 2018 11:46 AM
To: Kathryn Irby <Kathryn.Irby@arkansas.gov>
Cc: Kathy Ryan <kathyryan@taylorkinglaw.com>
Subject: Re: Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008 -- info request
 
Kathryn, 
 
Mrs. Westcott has no workers compensation coverage, so I have no additional
documentation to provide. We can supply an affidavit of no coverage signed by Mrs.
Westcott if the Commission wants us to. 
 
Thanks, 
 
On Thu, Nov 29, 2018 at 11:15 AM Kathryn Irby <Kathryn.Irby@arkansas.gov> wrote:

Mr. Phillips,
 
The Claims Commission has reviewed the answer filed by UAMS in the above-
referenced claim and requests additional information from Claimant regarding whether
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Claimant has or is going to file a workers comp claim related to her injury.
 
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
The information in this email or facsimile message is legally privileged and confidential information intended only for the use of the addressee(s).
If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that ANY DISSEMINATION, DISTRIBUTION OR COPYING
OF THE EMAIL IS STRICTLY PROHIBITED.  If you receive this transmission in error, please immediately notify us by telephone and return the
original message to us by U.S. Mail to 320 Main Street, Arkadelphia, AR 71923.

TAYLOR KING AND ASSOCIATES ACCEPTS NO LIABILITY FOR ANY DAMAGE CAUSED BY ANY VIRUS TRANSMITTED BY
EMAILS.

Confidentiality Notice: This e-mail message, including any attachments, is for the sole use
of the intended recipient(s) and may contain confidential and privileged information. Any
unauthorized review, use, disclosure or distribution is prohibited. If you are not the intended
recipient, please contact the sender by reply e-mail and destroy all copies of the original
message.

 
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
To: Jp Phillips
Cc: Robinson, Sherri; Kathy Ryan
Subject: RE: Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008 -- info request
Date: Monday, May 13, 2019 10:41:00 AM
Attachments: image001.jpg

Correct, thanks for checking.
 
Kathryn
 
From: Jp Phillips <jpphillips@taylorkinglaw.com> 
Sent: Monday, May 13, 2019 10:39 AM
To: Kathryn Irby <Kathryn.Irby@arkansas.gov>
Cc: Robinson, Sherri <SLRobinson@uams.edu>; Kathy Ryan <kathyryan@taylorkinglaw.com>
Subject: Re: Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008 -- info request
 
Kathryn,
 
This reminder popped up on my calendar today, just confirming that this claim is officially off of the
docket and being held in a abeyance for now. 
 
We are waiting on our official decision from the Municipal Health Fund Appeal hearing, we should
have it in a week or two. 
 
On Tue, Feb 26, 2019 at 3:09 PM Kathryn Irby <Kathryn.Irby@arkansas.gov> wrote:

JP, I don’t need a formal motion to continue or to hold in abeyance. Given the parties’ agreement,
I have removed the claim from the May docket and placed it in abeyance.
 
Thanks,
Kathryn
 

From: Robinson, Sherri <SLRobinson@uams.edu> 
Sent: Tuesday, February 26, 2019 12:44 PM
To: Jp Phillips <jpphillips@taylorkinglaw.com>
Cc: Kathryn Irby <Kathryn.Irby@arkansas.gov>; Kathy Ryan <kathyryan@taylorkinglaw.com>
Subject: RE: Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008 -- info request
 
No objection on our end.
 
Sherri L. Robinson | Associate General Counsel
University of Arkansas for Medical Sciences
4301 W. Markham, Slot #860
Little Rock, AR  72205
Phone:  501-686-7964 | Fax:  501-686-7736
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From: Jp Phillips [mailto:jpphillips@taylorkinglaw.com] 
Sent: Tuesday, February 26, 2019 11:35 AM
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
 
I believe we need to pull our hearing off of the docket for now. We have an outside dispute with
my client's private health insurance provider regarding the nature of bills and their obligations as
an insurance provider. We're in the middle of an informal appeals process, but litigation seems to
be likely. I informed Sherri of the unfolding situation a few weeks ago, but wanted to wait until I
was certain to contact you about moving the date. 
 
My question is, would you like me to go ahead and file a Motion to Hold in Abeyance with my
Motion for Continuance, or wait until an actual lawsuit is filed against her insurance company?
Regardless, the hearing date for our insurance appeal isn't until May and that hearing could have
a profound effect on the damages we can claim at the Commission hearing, so I believe we need
to move the date. 
 
Thanks, 
 
On Thu, Dec 6, 2018 at 11:53 AM Robinson, Sherri <SLRobinson@uams.edu> wrote:

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
 
JP and Sherri, I am setting this claim for hearing on Friday, April 12, 2019. Please let me know
if that will not give the parties sufficient time to complete discovery. Otherwise, we will send
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
claim and requests additional information from Claimant regarding whether Claimant has
or is going to file a workers comp claim related to her injury.
 
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
The information in this email or facsimile message is legally privileged and confidential information intended only for the use of the
addressee(s). If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that ANY DISSEMINATION, DISTRIBUTION
OR COPYING OF THE EMAIL IS STRICTLY PROHIBITED.  If you receive this transmission in error, please immediately notify us by telephone
and return the original message to us by U.S. Mail to 320 Main Street, Arkadelphia, AR 71923.

E.1

199

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
mailto:JPPhillips@TaylorKingLaw.com
mailto:JPPhillips@TaylorKingLaw.com


TAYLOR KING AND ASSOCIATES ACCEPTS NO LIABILITY FOR ANY DAMAGE CAUSED BY ANY VIRUS TRANSMITTED BY EMAILS.

Confidentiality Notice: This e-mail message, including any attachments, is for the sole use of
the intended recipient(s) and may contain confidential and privileged information. Any
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
addressee(s). If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that ANY DISSEMINATION, DISTRIBUTION OR
COPYING OF THE EMAIL IS STRICTLY PROHIBITED.  If you receive this transmission in error, please immediately notify us by telephone and
return the original message to us by U.S. Mail to 320 Main Street, Arkadelphia, AR 71923.

TAYLOR KING AND ASSOCIATES ACCEPTS NO LIABILITY FOR ANY DAMAGE CAUSED BY ANY VIRUS TRANSMITTED BY EMAILS.

 
--

JP Phillips
Attorney

Taylor King Law, P.A.
1920 E. Matthews, Jonesboro Arkansas, 72401
Main: (501) 205 8773| Fax: (501) 205 8755 | JPPhillips@TaylorKingLaw.com

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTE:
The information in this email or facsimile message is legally privileged and confidential information intended only for the use of the addressee(s). If
the reader of this message is not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that ANY DISSEMINATION, DISTRIBUTION OR COPYING OF THE
EMAIL IS STRICTLY PROHIBITED.  If you receive this transmission in error, please immediately notify us by telephone and return the original
message to us by U.S. Mail to 320 Main Street, Arkadelphia, AR 71923.

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
The information in this email or facsimile message is legally privileged and confidential information intended only for the use of the addressee(s). If the
reader of this message is not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that ANY DISSEMINATION, DISTRIBUTION OR COPYING OF THE EMAIL IS
STRICTLY PROHIBITED.  If you receive this transmission in error, please immediately notify us by telephone and return the original message to us by U.S.
Mail to 320 Main Street, Arkadelphia, AR 71923.

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
Date: Thursday, November 21, 2019 1:33:00 PM
Attachments: image001.jpg

JP, just following up on our email from May. Can you give me a status update?
 
Thanks,
Kathryn
 
 
Kathryn Irby
Arkansas State Claims Commission
101 East Capitol Avenue, Suite 410
Little Rock, Arkansas 72201
(501) 682-2822
 
 
 

From: Kathryn Irby 
Sent: Monday, May 13, 2019 10:41 AM
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
To: Jp Phillips; Robinson, Sherri
Cc: Kathy Ryan
Subject: RE: Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008 -- info request
Date: Tuesday, December 10, 2019 12:02:00 PM
Attachments: image001.jpg

JP, thank you for this information.
 
Kathryn
 
From: Jp Phillips <jpphillips@taylorkinglaw.com> 
Sent: Thursday, December 5, 2019 1:37 PM
To: Kathryn Irby <Kathryn.Irby@arkansas.gov>; Robinson, Sherri <SLRobinson@uams.edu>
Cc: Kathy Ryan <kathyryan@taylorkinglaw.com>
Subject: Re: Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008 -- info request
 
Kathryn and Sherri,
 
This is a horribly late response to your email, I apologize. My client has 

 We should have it all in a week or two. Once we have it, I'll
do a full supplement to the Commision and we'll be ready to proceed. We may have one deposition
to conduct, but nothing that would extend litigation the way Municipal League Appeal did. 
 
Also, the Appeal to the Municipal League Health fund was successful. I will supplement that
documentation to the commission at the same time that I supplement the rest. 
 
Thanks, and I hope you all had wonderful Thanksgiving. 
 
On Thu, Nov 21, 2019 at 1:33 PM Kathryn Irby <Kathryn.Irby@arkansas.gov> wrote:

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
 
This reminder popped up on my calendar today, just confirming that this claim is officially off of
the docket and being held in a abeyance for now. 
 
We are waiting on our official decision from the Municipal Health Fund Appeal hearing, we should
have it in a week or two. 
 
On Tue, Feb 26, 2019 at 3:09 PM Kathryn Irby <Kathryn.Irby@arkansas.gov> wrote:

JP, I don’t need a formal motion to continue or to hold in abeyance. Given the parties’
agreement, I have removed the claim from the May docket and placed it in abeyance.
 
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
 
I believe we need to pull our hearing off of the docket for now. We have an outside dispute
with my client's private health insurance provider regarding the nature of bills and their
obligations as an insurance provider. We're in the middle of an informal appeals process, but
litigation seems to be likely. I informed Sherri of the unfolding situation a few weeks ago, but
wanted to wait until I was certain to contact you about moving the date. 
 
My question is, would you like me to go ahead and file a Motion to Hold in Abeyance with my
Motion for Continuance, or wait until an actual lawsuit is filed against her insurance company?
Regardless, the hearing date for our insurance appeal isn't until May and that hearing could
have a profound effect on the damages we can claim at the Commission hearing, so I believe
we need to move the date. 
 
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
Cc: Robinson, Sherri <SLRobinson@uams.edu>; Kathy Ryan
<kathyryan@taylorkinglaw.com>
Subject: RE: Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008 -- info request
 
JP and Sherri, I am setting this claim for hearing on Friday, April 12, 2019. Please let me
know if that will not give the parties sufficient time to complete discovery. Otherwise, we
will send correspondence confirming the scheduling.
 
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
addressee(s). If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that ANY DISSEMINATION,
DISTRIBUTION OR COPYING OF THE EMAIL IS STRICTLY PROHIBITED.  If you receive this transmission in error, please immediately notify
us by telephone and return the original message to us by U.S. Mail to 320 Main Street, Arkadelphia, AR 71923.
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TAYLOR KING AND ASSOCIATES ACCEPTS NO LIABILITY FOR ANY DAMAGE CAUSED BY ANY VIRUS TRANSMITTED BY EMAILS.

Confidentiality Notice: This e-mail message, including any attachments, is for the sole use
of the intended recipient(s) and may contain confidential and privileged information. Any
unauthorized review, use, disclosure or distribution is prohibited. If you are not the
intended recipient, please contact the sender by reply e-mail and destroy all copies of the
original message.

 
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
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From: Misty Scott on behalf of ASCC Pleadings
To: Jp Phillips
Cc: Robinson, Sherri; MCGHEE, SHELLY; ASCC Pleadings; Kathryn Irby
Subject: Sebrena Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008
Date: Thursday, September 10, 2020 10:18:00 AM
Attachments: Sebrena Westcott v. UAMS.pdf

Mr. Phillips and Ms. Robinson:
 
Please see attached. Contact Kathryn Irby with any questions.
 
Misty Scott
Arkansas State Claims Commission
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ARKANSAS STATE CLAIMS COMMISSION 
 


(501) 682-1619 
FAX (501) 682-2823 


 
   


 
101 EAST CAPITOL AVENUE 


SUITE 410 
LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS 


72201-3823 


KATHRYN IRBY 
DIRECTOR 


 
       September 10, 2020 
 
 
Mr. JP Phillips         (via email only) 
Taylor King Law 
320 Main Street 
Arkadelphia, Arkansas 71923 
 
 
Re: Sebrena Westcott v. University of Arkansas for Medical Sciences 
 Claim No. 190008 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Dear Mr. Phillips,         
 


The above-styled claim has been held in abeyance for an extended period of time. Please 
notify this office in writing by Friday, October 2, 2020, whether the underlying administrative 
process has been resolved, such that this claim may proceed. If the Claims Commission does not 
receive a timely response, this claim will be dismissed by the Claims Commission for failure to 
prosecute. 


 
Sincerely, 


 
Kathryn Irby 


 
 
 
ES: msscott 
 
cc: Sherri L. Robinson, counsel for Respondent  
 







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
To: ASCC Pleadings
Cc: Robinson, Sherri; MCGHEE, SHELLY; Kathryn Irby
Subject: Re: Sebrena Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008
Date: Wednesday, September 16, 2020 11:13:37 AM
Attachments: Ltr to Clms Comm - proceeding.pdf

The attached notice was mailed to the Claims Commission and Sherri Robinson earlier this
week. With mail running a bit slow in some areas, I'm attaching it in this email as well. 

Thanks, 

On Thu, Sep 10, 2020 at 10:18 AM ASCC Pleadings <ASCCPleadings@arkansas.gov> wrote:

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
Cc: Jp Phillips; MCGHEE, SHELLY
Subject: Re: Sebrena Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008
Date: Friday, September 18, 2020 1:25:21 PM

Ms. Irby,

We have a little bit of discovery to finish, and then I plan to file a dispositive motion.

Thanks.

Sherri Robinson

On Sep 18, 2020, at 1:14 PM, Kathryn Irby <kathryn.irby@arkansas.gov> wrote:

﻿
Mr. Phillips and Ms. Robinson,
 
Thanks for this information. Do the parties still have discovery to complete? Are the
parties anticipating filing any dispositive motions? Or can the claim be set for hearing?
 
Kathryn Irby
 

From: Jp Phillips <jpphillips@taylorkinglaw.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 16, 2020 11:13 AM
To: ASCC Pleadings <ASCCPleadings@arkansas.gov>
Cc: Robinson, Sherri <SLRobinson@uams.edu>; MCGHEE, SHELLY
<SMcghee@uams.edu>; Kathryn Irby <Kathryn.Irby@arkansas.gov>
Subject: Re: Sebrena Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008
 
The attached notice was mailed to the Claims Commission and Sherri Robinson earlier
this week. With mail running a bit slow in some areas, I'm attaching it in this email as
well. 
 
Thanks, 
 
On Thu, Sep 10, 2020 at 10:18 AM ASCC Pleadings <ASCCPleadings@arkansas.gov>
wrote:

Mr. Phillips and Ms. Robinson:
 
Please see attached. Contact Kathryn Irby with any questions.
 
Misty Scott
Arkansas State Claims Commission

E.1

219

mailto:SLRobinson@uams.edu
mailto:SLRobinson@uams.edu
mailto:Kathryn.Irby@arkansas.gov
mailto:Kathryn.Irby@arkansas.gov
mailto:jpphillips@taylorkinglaw.com
mailto:jpphillips@taylorkinglaw.com
mailto:SMcghee@uams.edu
mailto:SMcghee@uams.edu
mailto:ASCCPleadings@arkansas.gov
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
DISTRIBUTION OR COPYING OF THE EMAIL IS STRICTLY PROHIBITED.  If you receive this transmission in error, please immediately
notify us by telephone and return the original message to us by U.S. Mail to 320 Main Street, Arkadelphia, AR 71923.

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
To: Kathryn Irby; Becca Ward; Robinson, Sherri
Subject: Proposed Subpoena
Date: Wednesday, April 14, 2021 1:33:16 PM
Attachments: Notice of Depo.docx

Proposed Subpoena - Dep Gupton.docx
Notice of Depo.pdf
Proposed Subpoena - Dep Gupton.pdf

Ms. Irby, 

I have attached a proposed subpoena for your approval, concerning an upcoming deposition. I
have also attached a notice of said deposition. I have included both PDF and Word formats for
your convenience.

Thank you, 

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
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BEFORE THE ARKANSAS STATE CLAIMS COMMISSION

OF THE STATE OF ARKANSAS



SEBRENA WESTCOTT							        CLAIMANT



V.				             CLAM NO. 190008-CC     



UNIVERSITY OF ARKANSAS

FOR MEDICAL SCIENCES						        RESPONDENT



NOTICE OF DEPOSITION



To:	Witness – Deputy Deondra Gupton

1. Counsel of record for Claimant Sebrena Westcott shall take the oral deposition of the following person, Deputy Deondra Gupton, by Zoom at the following date, time, and place:

2. Deponent:	Deputy Deondra Gupton;

a. Date:	April 22, 2021;

b. Time:	10:00 a.m.;

c. Location:	Via Zoom;

3. The deposition shall begin at the date and time stated above and shall continue day to day until completed. 

4. [bookmark: _GoBack]You are notified that the testimony of the deponent shall be recorded and transcribed by a court reporter, and the transcription of the deposition prepared by the court reporter may be introduced into evidence upon the trial of this lawsuit.







Respectfully Submitted,

							

							Taylor King Law, P.A.

						320 Main Street

						Arkadelphia, AR 71923

						Phone:	(870) 246-0505

						Fax: 	(870) 246-0529



					By:	/s/ Jordan “JP” Phillips         ___________								Jordan “JP” Phillips, Bar No. 2015155



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

	I hereby certify that a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing Plaintiff’s Notice of Intention to Take an Oral Deposition was served upon opposing counsel of record pursuant to Texas Rules of Civil Procedure on April 13, 2021.

Sherri L. Robinson

Office of General Counsel

4301 West Markham Street, Suite 860

Little Rock, Arkansas 72201-7199



Kathryn Irby, Director

Arkansas State Claims Commission

101 East Capitol, Suite 410

Little Rock, Arkansas 72201-2823

				

							/s/ Jordan “JP” Phillips________________

							Jordan “JP” Phillips




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

						       



SUBPOENA IN A CLAIMS COMMISION CASE



TO:	Deputy Deondra Gupton

	37 Willow Lake 

	Ward, AR 72176



  _   YOU ARE COMMANDED to appear at the Arkansas State Claims Commission, Pulaski County, Arkansas, at the place, date, and time specified below to testify in the above case.

		

		Place of Testimony:

		Date and Time:









_X__ YOU ARE COMMANDED to appear at the place, date and time specified below to testify in the taking of a deposition in the above case.

		

		Place of Deposition:

Via Zoom



		Date and Time:

Date:  April 22, 2021

Time:  10:00 a.m.







_____ YOU ARE COMMANDED, to produce and permit inspection and copying of the following documents or objects (list documents or objects):

__________________________________________________________________________

Any organization not a party to this suit that is subpoenaed for the taking of a deposition shall designate one or more officers, directors, managing agents, or other persons who consent to testify on its behalf, and may set forth, for each person designated, the matters on which the person will testify.  Arkansas Rules of Civil Procedure 30(b)(6).	



		Issuing Officer Signature and Title:



______________________________________________________

[bookmark: _GoBack]

		Date:



___________________















Prepared by:

Jordan “JP” Phillips, Attorney for Claimant

Taylor King Law 

1306B S. Caraway Road

Jonesboro, Arkansas 72401

(870) 246-0505			




 
 
 
 


BEFORE THE ARKANSAS STATE CLAIMS COMMISSION 
OF THE STATE OF ARKANSAS 


 
SEBRENA WESTCOTT               CLAIMANT 
 
V.                 CLAM NO. 190008-CC      
 
UNIVERSITY OF ARKANSAS 
FOR MEDICAL SCIENCES              RESPONDENT 


 


NOTICE OF DEPOSITION 
 


To: Witness – Deputy Deondra Gupton 


1. Counsel of record for Claimant Sebrena Westcott shall take the oral deposition of the 


following person, Deputy Deondra Gupton, by Zoom at the following date, time, and place: 


2. Deponent: Deputy Deondra Gupton; 


a. Date: April 22, 2021; 


b. Time: 10:00 a.m.; 


c. Location: Via Zoom; 


3. The deposition shall begin at the date and time stated above and shall continue day to day 


until completed.  


4. You are notified that the testimony of the deponent shall be recorded and transcribed by a 


court reporter, and the transcription of the deposition prepared by the court reporter may be 


introduced into evidence upon the trial of this lawsuit. 


 


 


 







Respectfully Submitted, 
        
       Taylor King Law, P.A. 


      320 Main Street 
      Arkadelphia, AR 71923 
      Phone: (870) 246-0505 
      Fax:  (870) 246-0529 


 
     By: /s/ Jordan “JP” Phillips         ___________ 


       Jordan “JP” Phillips, Bar No. 2015155 
 


CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 


 I hereby certify that a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing Plaintiff’s Notice 


of Intention to Take an Oral Deposition was served upon opposing counsel of record pursuant to 


Texas Rules of Civil Procedure on April 13, 2021. 


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
 
TO: Deputy Deondra Gupton 
 37 Willow Lake  
 Ward, AR 72176 
 
  _   YOU ARE COMMANDED to appear at the Arkansas State Claims Commission, Pulaski 
County, Arkansas, at the place, date, and time specified below to testify in the above case. 
   
Place of Testimony: Date and Time: 


 
 
_X__ YOU ARE COMMANDED to appear at the place, date and time specified below to testify 
in the taking of a deposition in the above case. 
   
Place of Deposition: 
Via Zoom 
 


Date and Time: 
Date:  April 22, 2021 
Time:  10:00 a.m. 


 
_____ YOU ARE COMMANDED, to produce and permit inspection and copying of the 
following documents or objects (list documents or objects): 
__________________________________________________________________________ 
Any organization not a party to this suit that is subpoenaed for the taking of a deposition 
shall designate one or more officers, directors, managing agents, or other persons who 
consent to testify on its behalf, and may set forth, for each person designated, the matters 
on which the person will testify.  Arkansas Rules of Civil Procedure 30(b)(6).  
 
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
To: Jp Phillips; Becca Ward; Robinson, Sherri
Subject: RE: Proposed Subpoena
Date: Wednesday, April 14, 2021 2:00:00 PM
Attachments: Westcott v. UAMS -- 190008 -- Gupton subpoena.pdf

JP, please see attached subpoena.
 
Thanks,
Kathryn Irby
 

From: Jp Phillips <jpphillips@taylorkinglaw.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, April 14, 2021 1:32 PM
To: Kathryn Irby <Kathryn.Irby@arkansas.gov>; Becca Ward <beccaward@taylorkinglaw.com>;
Robinson, Sherri <SLRobinson@uams.edu>
Subject: Proposed Subpoena
 
Ms. Irby, 
 
I have attached a proposed subpoena for your approval, concerning an upcoming deposition. I have
also attached a notice of said deposition. I have included both PDF and Word formats for your
convenience.
 
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
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Issued by the 


ARKANSAS STATE CLAIMS COMMISSION 


 


 


 


Sebrena Westcott, Claimant  SUBPOENA 


 


v.  CLAIM NO. 190008 


   


University of Arkansas for Medical Sciences, Respondent 


 


TO: Deputy Deondra Gupton 


 37 Willow Lake 


 Ward, Arkansas 72176 


 


______ YOU ARE COMMANDED to appear via Zoom at the Arkansas State Claims Commission 


at the place, date, and time specified below to testify in the above case:  


 


_xxx__ YOU ARE COMMANDED to appear at the place, date, and time specified below to testify 


in the taking of a deposition in the above case: 


 


  April 22, 2021, at 10:00 a.m. 


  This deposition will take place via Zoom. 


 


______ YOU ARE COMMANDED, at the time of trial, hearing, or deposition described above, to 


produce and permit inspection and copying of the following documents or objects (list 


documents or objects): 


 


______ YOU ARE COMMANDED, no more than ___ business days after receiving this subpoena, 


to produce and permit inspection and copying of the following documents or objects (list 


documents of objects): 


 


 


 


        April 14, 2021   


______________________________________   _____________________ 


Kathryn Irby, Director       Date 


Arkansas State Claims Commission 


101 East Capitol Avenue, Suite 410 


Little Rock, Arkansas 72201 







 


 


 
PROOF OF SERVICE 


 


 


_________________________________________________________________________________ 


SERVED ON (Print Name) 


 


 


_____________________________   _______________________________________ 


DATE       PLACE 


 


 


_________________________________________________________________________________ 


MANNER OF SERVICE 


 


 


_______________________________________________  ___________________________ 


SERVED BY (Print Name)      TITLE 


 


 
DECLARATION OF SERVER 


 


I declare, under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Arkansas, that the foregoing 


information contained in the Proof of Service is true and correct. 


 


_______________________________________________ 


SIGNATURE OF SERVER 


 


_______________________________________________ 


ADDRESS OF SERVER  


 


_____________________________ 


DATE EXECUTED 


 


 
NOTICE TO PERSONS SUBJECT TO SUBPOENAS 


Regardless of his or her county of residence, a witness subpoenaed for examination at a trial or hearing must be 


properly served with a subpoena at least two days prior to the hearing, or within a shorter time if the court so orders. The 


subpoena must be accompanied by a witness fee calculated at the rate of $30.00 per day for attendance and $0.25 per 


mile for travel from the witness’ residence to the place of the trial or hearing. Ark. R. Civ. Proc. 45(d), Claims 


Commission Rule 3.2(d). 


A witness subpoenaed in connection with a deposition must be properly served with a subpoena at least five 


business days prior to a deposition, or within a shorter time if the court so orders. The witness is required to attend a 


deposition at any place within 100 miles of where he or she resides, is employed, or transacts business in person, or at 


such other convenient place set by court order. The subpoena must be accompanied by a witness fee calculated at the rate 


of $30.00 per day for attendance and $0.25 per mile for travel from the witness’ residence to the place of the deposition. 


Ark. R. Civ. Proc. 45(e), Claims Commission Rule 3.3. 


A subpoena may command the person to whom it is directed to produce for inspection any books, papers, 


documents, or tangible things designated in the subpoena. The person subpoenaed may ask the court to quash or modify 


the subpoena if it is unreasonable or oppressive or to require that the person on whose behalf the subpoena is issued pay 


the reasonable cost of such production. Ark. R. Civ. Proc. 45(b). The person subpoenaed may also object in writing to 


inspection or copying of any or all of the designated materials or seek a protective order from the Claims Commission. If 


a written objection is made within ten days of service of the subpoena or on or before the time specified for compliance 


if such time is less than ten days, the party causing the subpoena to be issued is not entitled to inspect the materials 


unless the court so orders. Ark. R. Civ. Proc. 45(e). When a witness fails to attend in obedience to a subpoena or 


intentionally evades the service of a subpoena by concealment or otherwise, the Claims Commission may enforce the 


subpoena pursuant to Ark. Code Ann. § 19-10-207(d). 







 

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

223



 

 

 
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
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From: Becca Ward
To: ASCC Pleadings; SLRobinson@uams.edu
Cc: Kathryn Irby; "Charsie Gordon"
Subject: Sebrena Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No 19008-CC
Date: Thursday, May 6, 2021 4:42:19 PM
Attachments: image001.png

image002.jpg

 
Please see attached Claimants’ Motion to Substitute Counsel and Proposed Order to Substitute
Counsel. 

Becca Ward
Litigation Assistant
Taylor King Law, P.A.
320 Main Street |Arkadelphia, AR 71923
Main: (870) 246-0505 | Fax: (870) 246-0529 | TaylorKingLaw.com

 
 
CONFIDENTIALITY NOTE:
The information in this email is legally privileged and confidential information intended only for the use of the addressee(s).  If the reader of this
message is not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution or copying of the email is strictly prohibited.  If you
receive this transmission in error, please immediately notify us and delete the message. Taylor King Law accepts no liability for damage caused by any
virus transmitted by emails.
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From: Kathryn Irby
To: Becca Ward; ASCC Pleadings; SLRobinson@uams.edu
Cc: "Charsie Gordon"
Subject: RE: Sebrena Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No 19008-CC
Date: Monday, May 10, 2021 1:46:00 PM
Attachments: image001.png

image002.jpg

Ms. Ward, I don’t see attachments to your email?
 
Thanks,
Kathryn Irby
 

From: Becca Ward <beccaward@taylorkinglaw.com> 
Sent: Thursday, May 6, 2021 4:42 PM
To: ASCC Pleadings <ASCCPleadings@arkansas.gov>; SLRobinson@uams.edu
Cc: Kathryn Irby <Kathryn.Irby@arkansas.gov>; 'Charsie Gordon'
<charsiegordon@taylorkinglaw.com>
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
To: Kathryn Irby; ASCC Pleadings; SLRobinson@uams.edu
Cc: "Charsie Gordon"
Subject: RE: Sebrena Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No 19008-CC
Date: Monday, May 10, 2021 2:58:41 PM
Attachments: image001.png

image003.jpg
Order to Substitute Counsel.pdf
Motion for Sub and EOA.pdf

I sincerely apologize.  It’s been a very long year.
 

From: Kathryn Irby [mailto:Kathryn.Irby@arkansas.gov] 
Sent: Monday, May 10, 2021 1:46 PM
To: Becca Ward <beccaward@taylorkinglaw.com>; ASCC Pleadings <ASCCPleadings@arkansas.gov>;
SLRobinson@uams.edu
Cc: 'Charsie Gordon' <charsiegordon@taylorkinglaw.com>
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


 


SEBRENA WESTCOTT                   CLAIMANT 


 


V.                CLAM NO. 190008-CC      


 


UNIVERSITY OF ARKANSAS 


FOR MEDICAL SCIENCES             RESPONDENT 


 


ORDER ON MOTION TO SUBSTITUTE COUNSEL 


 This cause coming to be heard coming to be heard on the Claimant’s Motion to Substitute 


counsel, due notice having been given and the court being fully advised, IT IS SO ORDERED 


that Charsie Gordon is substituted as counsel for the Claimant in this cause.  Jordan “JP” Phillips 


is relieved as counsel for the Claimant. 


IT IS SO ORDERED. 


        ______________________________ 


 The Claims Commission 


 


 


        ______________________________ 


        DATE 


 


 


Prepared by:      


 


/s/Charsie Gordon______________ 


Charsie Gordon       


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


 


MOTION FOR SUBSTITUTION AND ENTRY OF APPEARANCE OF COUNSEL 


 


 Comes now the Claimant, Sebrena Westcott, by and through her attorneys, Taylor King 


Law, P.A, and hereby moves for substitution and entry of appearance of new counsel of record, 


Charsie Gordon, of the law firm of Taylor King Law, as follows: 


1. Attorney Jordan “JP” Phillips of the law firm Taylor King Law previously entered an 


appearance as counsel of record on behalf of the Claimants. Attorney Jordan “JP” 


Phillips seeks to withdraw as counsel of record. He is no longer working at Taylor 


King Law. 


2. Attorney Charsie Gordon who also is with the law firm of Taylor King Law seeks to 


enter her appearance and to be substituted as the attorney of record for the Claimant 


in these proceedings. 


WHEREFORE, the Claimant respectfully requests that her motion be granted; that 


Attorney Jordan “JP” Phillips be permitted to withdraw as the attorney of record for the 


Claimant, and that Attorney Charsie Gordon be permitted to enter her appearance and be 


substituted as the attorney of record for the Claimant in this proceeding. 


 







        Respectfully submitted, 


        Claimant 


 


       By: /s/Charsie Gordon______________ 


        Charsie Gordon Bar No. 2016059 


        Taylor King Law 


        320 Main St 


        Arkadelphia, AR 71923 


        (870) 246-0505 


        (870) 246-0529 f 


 


 


CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 


 


 On May 6, 2021, the undersigned attorney hereby certifies that a copy of the foregoing 


has been served via the United States Postal Service or by electronic mail as applicable, upon the 


following counsel of record: 


 


Sherri L. Robinson 


Sr. Associate General Counsel 


University of Arkansas for Medical Sciences 


4301 West Markham, Slot 860 


Little Rock, Arkansas 72205 


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

230

mailto:SLRobinson@uams.edu
mailto:SLRobinson@uams.edu


BEFORE THE ARKANSAS STATE CLAIMS COMMISSION 

SEBRENA WESTCOTT CLAIMANT 

V.                CLAM NO. 190008-CC     

UNIVERSITY OF ARKANSAS 

FOR MEDICAL SCIENCES        RESPONDENT 

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

May 10, 2021
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From: Kathryn Irby
To: Becca Ward; ASCC Pleadings; SLRobinson@uams.edu
Cc: "Charsie Gordon"
Subject: ORDER: Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008
Date: Monday, May 10, 2021 3:03:00 PM
Attachments: Westcott -- order re Cl"s motion to substitute counsel.pdf

image001.png
image003.jpg

Ms. Gordon and Ms. Robinson, please see attached order entered by the Claims Commission.
 
Thanks,
Kathryn Irby
 
 
Kathryn Irby
Arkansas State Claims Commission
101 East Capitol Avenue, Suite 410
Little Rock, Arkansas 72201
(501) 682-2822
 
 
 

From: Becca Ward <beccaward@taylorkinglaw.com> 
Sent: Monday, May 10, 2021 2:57 PM
To: Kathryn Irby <Kathryn.Irby@arkansas.gov>; ASCC Pleadings <ASCCPleadings@arkansas.gov>;
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

233

mailto:Kathryn.Irby@arkansas.gov
mailto:Kathryn.Irby@arkansas.gov
mailto:charsiegordon@taylorkinglaw.com
mailto:charsiegordon@taylorkinglaw.com


From: Misty Scott on behalf of ASCC Pleadings
To: Robinson, Sherri
Cc: MCGHEE, SHELLY; ASCC Pleadings; Kathryn Irby
Subject: CORR: Sebrena Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008
Date: Wednesday, June 8, 2022 3:33:00 PM
Attachments: Sebrena Westcott v. UAMS.pdf

Ms. Robinson:
 
Please see attached. Contact Kathryn Irby with any questions.
 
Thank you,
 

Misty
 
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


 
June 8, 2022 


 
 
Ms. Charsie Gordon 
Taylor King Law  
320 Main Street  
Arkadelphia, Arkansas 71923 
 
Ms. Sherri L. Robinson               (via email) 
University of Arkansas for Medical Sciences 
4301 West Markham Street, Slot 860 
Little Rock, Arkansas 72205 
 
Re: Sebrena Westcott v. University of Arkansas for Medical Sciences 
 Claim No. 190008 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Dear Ms. Gordon and Ms. Robinson,         
 


The above-styled claim has been in discovery for an extended period of time. Please notify 
this office in writing by Wednesday, June 29, 2022, as to the status of discovery. If the Claims 
Commission does not receive a timely response, this claim will be set for hearing as soon as is 
practicable. 


 
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
To: Kathryn Irby; ASCC Pleadings
Cc: MCGHEE, SHELLY; Charsie
Subject: RE: CORR: Sebrena Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008
Date: Thursday, June 9, 2022 12:57:26 PM
Attachments: image001.png

Based on my current schedule, I could have it filed by July 15.
 
Sherri
 

From: Kathryn Irby <Kathryn.Irby@arkansas.gov> 
Sent: Thursday, June 9, 2022 9:52 AM
To: Robinson, Sherri <SLRobinson@uams.edu>; ASCC Pleadings <ASCCPleadings@arkansas.gov>
Cc: MCGHEE, SHELLY <SMcghee@uams.edu>; Charsie <charsiegordon@taylorkinglaw.com>
Subject: RE: CORR: Sebrena Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008
 
Ms. Robinson, thanks for this information. Assuming that Ms. Gordon agrees that discovery is
complete, when does UAMS intend to file its MSJ?
 
Kathryn
 

From: Robinson, Sherri <SLRobinson@uams.edu> 
Sent: Thursday, June 9, 2022 9:11 AM
To: ASCC Pleadings <ASCCPleadings@arkansas.gov>
Cc: MCGHEE, SHELLY <SMcghee@uams.edu>; Kathryn Irby <Kathryn.Irby@arkansas.gov>; Charsie
<charsiegordon@taylorkinglaw.com>
Subject: RE: CORR: Sebrena Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008
 
Ms. Irby:
 
Based on an email exchange with Ms. Gordon in January, I believe that discovery is complete. I have
added Ms. Gordon to this email so she can confirm that. If Ms. Gordon confirms that discovery is
complete, UAMS intends to file a Motion for Summary Judgment prior to a hearing.
 
Respectfully,
 
 
Sherri L. Robinson | Sr. Associate General Counsel
University of Arkansas for Medical Sciences
4301 W. Markham, Slot #860
Little Rock, AR  72205
Phone:  501-686-7964 | Fax:  501-686-7736
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From: Misty Scott <Misty.Scott@arkansas.gov> On Behalf Of ASCC Pleadings
Sent: Wednesday, June 8, 2022 3:33 PM
To: Robinson, Sherri <SLRobinson@uams.edu>
Cc: MCGHEE, SHELLY <SMcghee@uams.edu>; ASCC Pleadings <ASCCPleadings@arkansas.gov>;
Kathryn Irby <Kathryn.Irby@arkansas.gov>
Subject: CORR: Sebrena Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008
 
Ms. Robinson:
 
Please see attached. Contact Kathryn Irby with any questions.
 
Thank you,
 

Misty
 
Misty Scott
Arkansas State Claims Commission
 

Confidentiality Notice: This e-mail message, including any attachments, is for the sole use of the
intended recipient(s) and may contain confidential and privileged information. Any unauthorized
review, use, disclosure or distribution is prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient, please
contact the sender by reply e-mail and destroy all copies of the original message.
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From: Charsie Gordon
To: Robinson, Sherri
Cc: Kathryn Irby; ASCC Pleadings; MCGHEE, SHELLY
Subject: Re: CORR: Sebrena Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008
Date: Friday, June 10, 2022 11:05:55 AM
Attachments: image001.png

Discovery is complete.

Thanks,

Charsie
 Charsie Gordon

Attorney at Law | Taylor King Law

820 W 3rd Street, Little Rock, AR 72201
P: (870) 246-0505   F: (501) 229-7010
charsiegordon@taylorkinglaw.com | www.taylorkinglaw.com

Confidentiality note:

The information in this email is legally privileged and confidential information intended only for the use of the addressee(s). If the reader of this
message is not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution, or copying of this email is strictly prohibited. If you
receive this transmission in error, please immediately notify us and delete this message. Taylor King Law accepts no liability for damage caused by any
virus transmitted by emails.

On Thu, Jun 9, 2022 at 12:57 PM Robinson, Sherri <SLRobinson@uams.edu> wrote:

Based on my current schedule, I could have it filed by July 15.

 

Sherri

 

From: Kathryn Irby <Kathryn.Irby@arkansas.gov> 
Sent: Thursday, June 9, 2022 9:52 AM
To: Robinson, Sherri <SLRobinson@uams.edu>; ASCC Pleadings
<ASCCPleadings@arkansas.gov>
Cc: MCGHEE, SHELLY <SMcghee@uams.edu>; Charsie
<charsiegordon@taylorkinglaw.com>
Subject: RE: CORR: Sebrena Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008

 

Ms. Robinson, thanks for this information. Assuming that Ms. Gordon agrees that discovery
is complete, when does UAMS intend to file its MSJ?

 

Kathryn
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From: Robinson, Sherri <SLRobinson@uams.edu> 
Sent: Thursday, June 9, 2022 9:11 AM
To: ASCC Pleadings <ASCCPleadings@arkansas.gov>
Cc: MCGHEE, SHELLY <SMcghee@uams.edu>; Kathryn Irby
<Kathryn.Irby@arkansas.gov>; Charsie <charsiegordon@taylorkinglaw.com>
Subject: RE: CORR: Sebrena Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008

 

Ms. Irby:

 

Based on an email exchange with Ms. Gordon in January, I believe that discovery is
complete. I have added Ms. Gordon to this email so she can confirm that. If Ms. Gordon
confirms that discovery is complete, UAMS intends to file a Motion for Summary Judgment
prior to a hearing.

 

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
Cc: MCGHEE, SHELLY <SMcghee@uams.edu>; ASCC Pleadings
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<ASCCPleadings@arkansas.gov>; Kathryn Irby <Kathryn.Irby@arkansas.gov>
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
To: Charsie Gordon; Robinson, Sherri
Cc: ASCC Pleadings; MCGHEE, SHELLY
Subject: RE: CORR: Sebrena Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008
Date: Friday, June 10, 2022 11:12:00 AM
Attachments: image001.png

Thank you both for this information. I will note in the file that UAMS will be filing a MSJ by July 15.
 
Kathryn
 

From: Charsie Gordon <charsiegordon@taylorkinglaw.com> 
Sent: Friday, June 10, 2022 11:03 AM
To: Robinson, Sherri <SLRobinson@uams.edu>
Cc: Kathryn Irby <Kathryn.Irby@arkansas.gov>; ASCC Pleadings <ASCCPleadings@arkansas.gov>;
MCGHEE, SHELLY <SMcghee@uams.edu>
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
 
Based on an email exchange with Ms. Gordon in January, I believe that discovery is complete. I
have added Ms. Gordon to this email so she can confirm that. If Ms. Gordon confirms that
discovery is complete, UAMS intends to file a Motion for Summary Judgment prior to a hearing.
 
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
Cc: Kathryn Irby; MCGHEE, SHELLY; Charsie
Subject: Sabrena Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008 - UAMS Motion for Summary Judgment
Date: Friday, June 24, 2022 2:17:10 PM
Attachments: image001.png

Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008 - UAMS MSJ.pdf
MSJ Exhibit 1 - Video of Fall.mp4
Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008 - UAMS MSJ Brief.pdf

Dear Director Irby,
 
Attached please find the Motion for Summary Judgment and Brief in Support on behalf of UAMS for
filing in the above referenced case. I am serving a copy of the filing on Ms. Gordon via this email as
well.
 
Please note that Exhibit 1 is a separate attachment as it is a video file. If you have any trouble
receiving it via email, please let me know and I will deliver a copy on a flash drive.
 
Please do not hesitate to contact me if you need anything further.
 
Thank you for your assistance in this matter.
 
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


 


SEBRENA WESTCOTT                                                  CLAIMANT 


 


V.                 NO. 190008 


 


UNIVERSITY OF ARKANSAS 


FOR MEDICAL SCIENCES                                  RESPONDENT 


 


RESPONDENT’S MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT 
 


 Comes now Respondent, University of Arkansas for Medical Sciences 


(UAMS), by and through its undersigned counsel, and for its Motion for Summary 


Judgment, states as follows: 


1. There are no genuine issues of material fact in dispute in this matter, 


and UAMS is entitled to summary judgment. 


2. Claimant cannot establish that UAMS was negligent. 


3. The following exhibits are offered in support of the motion: 


a. Exhibit 1 – Video of fall 


b. Exhibit 2 – Declaration of Sonja Hart 


c. Exhibit 3 – Insurance appeal decision 


4. The grounds for this motion are more fully set forth in a brief in 


support filed contemporaneously with the motion. 


WHEREFORE, Respondent respectfully requests that the Commission grant 


its motion for summary judgment and for all other relief to which it may be entitled. 


Respectfully submitted,  
 


UNIVERSITY OF ARKANSAS   


 FOR MEDICAL SCIENCES,  
Respondent 
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By:       
  SHERRI L. ROBINSON, #97194  


  Sr. Associate General Counsel 
Univ. of Arkansas for Medical Sciences 


4301 West Markham, Slot 860  
Little Rock, AR 72205 


(501) 686-7608 
SLRobinson@uams.edu 
 


      Attorney for Respondent 


 


 


 


 


CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 


 
I, Sherri L. Robinson, do hereby certify that a copy of the foregoing pleading 


was served on claimant herein by emailing a copy of same this 24th day of June, 


2022 to the following: 
 


Charsie Gordon 
Taylor King Law, P.A. 


charsiegordon@taylorkinglaw.com 
 


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


 


V.              NO. 190008 


 


UNIVERSITY OF ARKANSAS 


FOR MEDICAL SCIENCES                                  RESPONDENT 


 


BRIEF IN SUPPORT OF MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT 
 


 Comes now Respondent, University of Arkansas for Medical Sciences 


(UAMS), by and through its undersigned counsel, and for its Brief In Support of 


Motion for Summary Judgment, states as follows: 


Statement of Facts. 


The relevant facts to this matter are very brief and indisputable. UAMS 


admits that Sabrena Westcott fell in the entryway of the UAMS emergency room 


(ER) on September 16, 2017 when she tripped on a rug. (Complaint). Westcott’s fall 


was captured on video which shows that less than one minute before Westcott fell, 


another gentleman walked into the entryway kicking up the rug slightly. 


(Respondent’s Exhibit 1 - Video footage). Approximately 45 seconds after the first 


man walked through, a second man walked through the entryway with no problem. 


(Id.). Only 12 seconds after the second man walked through the entryway, Westcott 


walked in and the toe of her right foot kicked up the rug causing her to fall on her 


face and arms suffering injuries. (Id.). The police officer assigned to the security desk 


of the ER and another officer immediately attended to Westcott as did ER personnel. 


(Complaint, attachments, pp. 2-3 – UAMS Incident Report). UAMS is not aware of 


other falls in this area in the three years prior to Westcott’s fall. (Exhibit 2 – 


Declaration of Sonja Hart).  
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Argument.  


 Rule 56(c)(2) of the Arkansas Rules of Civil Procedure states that summary 


judgment  


shall be rendered forthwith if the pleadings, depositions, answers to 
interrogatories and admissions on file, together with the affidavits, if 


any, show that there is no genuine issue as to any material fact and 
that the moving party is entitled to a judgment as a matter of law on 


the issues specifically set forth in the motion.  
 


Ark. R. Civ. P. 56(c)(2). See also Martin v. Hallum, 2010 Ark. App. 193 at 10, 374 


S.W.3d 152, 159. The evidence is to be viewed by the court in the light most 


favorable to the non-moving party. Id. Nonetheless, “an adverse party may not rest 


on mere allegations or denials of his pleadings, but his response, by affidavits or as 


otherwise provided by this rule, must set forth specific facts showing that there is a 


genuine issue for trial.” Ark. R. Civ. P. 56(e). “[T]he opposing party must meet proof 


with proof and demonstrate the existence of a material issue of fact.” Spear v. City of 


Fordyce, 351 Ark. 305, 309, 92 S.W.3d 38, 41 (2002). 


“Negligence is defined as the failure to do something which a reasonably 


careful person would do, or the doing of something which a reasonably careful 


person would not do, under circumstances similar to those shown by the evidence.” 


Scully v. Middleton, 295 Ark. 603, 604-605, 751 S.W.2d 5, 5-6 (1988) (citation 


omitted). To recover on an action for negligence, Westcott must show that UAMS 


owed her a duty, breached that duty and the breach caused her harm. Lloyd v. Pier 


West Property Owners Assoc., 2015 Ark. App. 487, 4, 470 S.W.3d 293, 297 (citation 


omitted).  
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Duty of care is an essential element of a negligence claim.  Locke v. Continental 


Cas. Co., 2013 Ark. App. 690, at 3, 2013 WL 6097990 (citation omitted). Here, 


assuming for the purposes of this motion only that Westcott was a business invitee as 


suggested by her Complaint, UAMS “had a duty to use ordinary care in maintaining 


its premises in a reasonably safe condition. House v. Wal-Mart Stores, Inc., 316 Ark. 


221, 223, 872 S.W.2d 52, 52 (1994). This duty applies, however, only when the 


danger is foreseeable. Benson v. Shuler Drilling Co., 316 Ark. 101, 112, 871 S.W.3d 


552, 558 (1994). There is no duty to guard against merely possible, as opposed to 


probable, harm. Ethyl Corp. v. Johnson, 345 Ark. 476, 481-82, 49 S.W.3d 644, 648 


(2001).” Id. (emphasis added). The simple fact that Westcott fell on UAMS property 


“does not give rise to an inference of negligence.” See House v. Wal-Mart Stores, Inc., 


supra (citation omitted) (emphasis added). See also, AutoZone v. Horton, 87 Ark. App. 


349, 354, 192 S.W.3d 291, 295 (2004).  


Locke v. Continental Cas. Co. and AutoZone v. Horton are two Arkansas trip and 


fall cases that are instructive in this matter. In the AutoZone case, the plaintiff tripped 


on “an unsecured doormat that protruded above the surface of an abutted doormat” 


as she entered the store and fell on her face and shoulder causing injuries. AutoZone, 


87 Ark. App. at 350, 192 S.W.3d at 293. Two former employees of AutoZone 


testified that while they had seen the mats curl up and even tripped on the mats 


themselves, they had never seen a customer trip on the mats. Id. at 352, 192 S.W.3d 


at 293.  The Court of Appeals found the plaintiff did not present substantial evidence 


to establish AutoZone knew the mats were a “tripping hazard,” and AutoZone did 


not breach its duty of care. Id. at 355, 192 S.W.3d at 296. 
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In Locke, the plaintiff tripped over exposed bolts from a broken sign on a 


sidewalk in front of Jefferson Regional Medical Center while going to visit a patient 


in the ER. Locke, 2013 Ark. App. at 1-2. The Court found that the plaintiff did not 


present admissible evidence of when the bolts became exposed, that the hospital 


knew of and disregarded the exposed bolts, or that the hospital was negligent in using 


a sign that when broken led to exposed bolts. Id. at 4-6. Citing the same standards as 


AutoZone, the Arkansas Court of Appeals concluded, “we cannot say the hospital had 


a duty to guard against the particular harm that befell Locke.” Id. at 6-7. 


Here, UAMS had a legal duty to use ordinary care to protect business invitees 


from tripping on the rug if there was proof that it either knew or, or by the exercise of 


reasonable care could have discovered, the existence of the kicked-up rug before 


Westcott fell. Locke, supra at 4. Based on the timing between Westcott’s fall and the 


kicking up of the rug by another visitor, UAMS did not know and could not have 


known or foreseen the potential danger. There is no evidence that the rug was placed 


“in any way other than a reasonable manner.” See AutoZone, 87 Ark. App. at 354, 


192 S.W.3d at 295.  


In fact, the video shows that the rug was fine only one-minute prior 


Westcott’s arrival, and even after kicked up by a visitor, another individual walked 


through the area with no problem. (Exhibit 1). Moreover, while the presence of a rug 


could possibly (i.e., may or may not) lead to harm, it does not rise to the required 


level of probable (i.e., likely) harm articulated by the Arkansas Supreme Court.1 


Here, two individuals walked through before Westcott and did not fall. Additionally, 


                                                 
1 See Merriam-Webster Dictionary (https://www.merriam-webster.com/) for definitions of possible 


versus probable.  



https://www.merriam-webster.com/
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UAMS is not aware of any other falls in this area for the three years prior to 


Westcott’s fall; thus, Westcott cannot establish that UAMS knew or should have 


known the rug was a tripping hazard. (Id.). 


Conclusion. 


Westcott cannot establish that UAMS was negligent in this matter. Westcott’s 


fall, while regrettable, was caused by another visitor kicking up the rug less than one 


minute before Westcott passed through; and accordingly, it was not foreseeable by 


UAMS. While UAMS does not believe that a discussion of damages is a necessary 


component of its case for summary judgment, it notes that Westcott’s medical bills 


were covered in full by the Municipal Health Benefit Program. (See Exhibit 3). 


Consistent with the decisions in Lock and Auto Zone, UAMS was not negligent and is 


entitled to summary judgment.  


WHEREFORE, Respondent requests that the Commission grant its motion 


for summary judgment and for all other relief to which it may be entitled. 







6 


 


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


was on claimant herein by emailing a copy of same this 24th day of June, 2022, to 


the following: 
 


Charsie Gordon 
Taylor King Law, P.A. 
charsiegordon@taylorkinglaw.com  


 
 


_____________________________ 
Sherri L. Robinson 



mailto:SLRobinson@uams.edu

mailto:charsiegordon@taylorkinglaw.com
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MSJ EXHIBIT 1 – VIDEO OF FALL 
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

249



4 

 

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
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RESPONDENT’S EXHIBIT 1 

IS SEPARATE ATTACHMENT TO FILING 

MSJ EXHIBIT 1 – VIDEO OF FALL 
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From: Charsie Gordon
To: ASCC Pleadings
Cc: Robinson, Sherri; Kathryn Irby; MCGHEE, SHELLY; Katie Davis
Subject: Re: Sabrena Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008 - Westcott"s Resp to D"s MSJ
Date: Friday, July 15, 2022 9:40:18 AM
Attachments: image001.png

Exhibit A - Video Footage.mp4
Pl"s Resp to D"s MSJ w Exhibits B-D.pdf

Director Irby,

 

Attached please find our Response for the Motion for Summary Judgment with a Brief in
Support on behalf of Ms. Westcott for filing in the above referenced case. I am serving a copy
to Ms. Robinson via this email as well.

 

Please note that Exhibit A is a separate attachment due to it being a video file. If
you need anything further please let me know.

 

Have a nice weekend everyone. 

 

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

On Fri, Jun 24, 2022 at 3:07 PM ASCC Pleadings <ASCCPleadings@arkansas.gov> wrote:

Received.
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From: Robinson, Sherri <SLRobinson@uams.edu> 
Sent: Friday, June 24, 2022 2:17 PM
To: ASCC Pleadings <ASCCPleadings@arkansas.gov>
Cc: Kathryn Irby <kathryn.irby@arkansas.gov>; MCGHEE, SHELLY
<SMcghee@uams.edu>; Charsie <charsiegordon@taylorkinglaw.com>
Subject: Sabrena Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008 - UAMS Motion for Summary
Judgment

 

Dear Director Irby,

 

Attached please find the Motion for Summary Judgment and Brief in Support on behalf of
UAMS for filing in the above referenced case. I am serving a copy of the filing on Ms.
Gordon via this email as well.

 

Please note that Exhibit 1 is a separate attachment as it is a video file. If you have any
trouble receiving it via email, please let me know and I will deliver a copy on a flash drive.

 

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
To: Charsie Gordon; ASCC Pleadings
Cc: Robinson, Sherri; MCGHEE, SHELLY; Katie Davis
Subject: HEARING SCHEDULED: Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008
Date: Friday, July 15, 2022 10:57:00 AM
Attachments: Westcott v. UAMS -- 190008 -- hearing ltr (MSJ).pdf

image001.png

Ms. Gordon, I can confirm receipt of your response to the pending MSJ.
 
Ms. Gordon and Ms. Robinson, please see attached hearing letter. The Zoom invitation can be
found in the attached letter and is also set out below.
 
Thanks,
Kathryn Irby
 
 
Kathryn Irby
Arkansas State Claims Commission
101 East Capitol Avenue, Suite 410
Little Rock, Arkansas 72201
(501) 682-2822
 
The Claims Commission is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting.
 
Topic: Claims Commission -- hearings
Time: Oct 13, 2022 09:00 AM Central Time (US and Canada)
 
Join Zoom Meeting
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/87693102786?pwd=ZnNoOXU5b1p0a3VlKzlDWFd6b2I3dz09
 
Meeting ID: 876 9310 2786
Passcode: KjpZ0x
One tap mobile
+16469313860,,87693102786#,,,,*798674# US
+19294362866,,87693102786#,,,,*798674# US (New York)
 
Dial by your location
        +1 646 931 3860 US
        +1 929 436 2866 US (New York)
        +1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC)
        +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago)
        +1 669 444 9171 US
        +1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose)
        +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma)
        +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston)
Meeting ID: 876 9310 2786
Passcode: 798674
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


 


July 15, 2022 


 


 


Ms. Charsie Gordon (via email) 


Taylor King Law  


320 Main Street  


Arkadelphia, Arkansas 71923 


 


Ms. Sherri L. Robinson (via email) 


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


 


The Claims Commission has scheduled a hearing on UAMS’ pending motion for summary 


judgment for Thursday, October 13, 2022, beginning at 9:00 a.m. All parties will attend via 


Zoom. The Zoom invitation is enclosed herein. 


 


As this is a motion hearing, no prehearing documents are requested. 


 


If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact my office. 


 


 


Sincerely, 


 


Kathryn Irby 


 


 


ES: kmirby 


  







 


 


 


 


 


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


Find your local number: https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kb98UHJcK 


 











Find your local number: https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kb98UHJcK
 
 

From: Charsie Gordon <charsiegordon@taylorkinglaw.com> 
Sent: Friday, July 15, 2022 9:40 AM
To: ASCC Pleadings <ASCCPleadings@arkansas.gov>
Cc: Robinson, Sherri <SLRobinson@uams.edu>; Kathryn Irby <Kathryn.Irby@arkansas.gov>;
MCGHEE, SHELLY <SMcghee@uams.edu>; Katie Davis <katiedavis@taylorkinglaw.com>
Subject: Re: Sabrena Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008 - Westcott's Resp to D's MSJ
 
Director Irby,
 
Attached please find our Response for the Motion for Summary Judgment with a Brief in Support on
behalf of Ms. Westcott for filing in the above referenced case. I am serving a copy to Ms. Robinson
via this email as well.
 
Please note that Exhibit A is a separate attachment due to it being a video file. If you need anything
further please let me know.
 
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
Cc: Kathryn Irby <kathryn.irby@arkansas.gov>; MCGHEE, SHELLY <SMcghee@uams.edu>; Charsie
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<charsiegordon@taylorkinglaw.com>
Subject: Sabrena Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008 - UAMS Motion for Summary Judgment
 
Dear Director Irby,
 
Attached please find the Motion for Summary Judgment and Brief in Support on behalf of UAMS
for filing in the above referenced case. I am serving a copy of the filing on Ms. Gordon via this
email as well.
 
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
To: Kathryn Irby; Charsie Gordon; ASCC Pleadings
Cc: MCGHEE, SHELLY; Katie Davis
Subject: RE: HEARING SCHEDULED: Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008
Date: Friday, July 15, 2022 11:05:37 AM
Attachments: image001.png

Ms. Irby,
 
I am on vacation during the week of October 10. Can we possibly move the hearing to the November
schedule?
 
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
Sent: Friday, July 15, 2022 10:58 AM
To: Charsie Gordon <charsiegordon@taylorkinglaw.com>; ASCC Pleadings
<ASCCPleadings@arkansas.gov>
Cc: Robinson, Sherri <SLRobinson@uams.edu>; MCGHEE, SHELLY <SMcghee@uams.edu>; Katie
Davis <katiedavis@taylorkinglaw.com>
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
To: Robinson, Sherri; Charsie Gordon; ASCC Pleadings
Cc: MCGHEE, SHELLY; Katie Davis
Subject: HEARING RESCHEDULED: Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008
Date: Friday, July 15, 2022 11:13:00 AM
Attachments: Westcott v. UAMS -- 190008 -- resched hearing ltr (MSJ).pdf

image001.png

I can move it to December 15. Please see attached. New Zoom invite included in the attached letter
and also set out below. Thanks!
 
Kathryn
 
The Claims Commission is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting.
 
Topic: Claims Commission -- hearings
Time: Dec 15, 2022 09:00 AM Central Time (US and Canada)
 
Join Zoom Meeting
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/87233982936?pwd=WWtCY3k1c2VKblVuaDNueHA5NTY3Zz09
 
Meeting ID: 872 3398 2936
Passcode: 09QZ2p
One tap mobile
+13017158592,,87233982936#,,,,*460453# US (Washington DC)
+13126266799,,87233982936#,,,,*460453# US (Chicago)
 
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
Passcode: 460453
Find your local number: https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kbkU0WW4wI
 
 

From: Robinson, Sherri <SLRobinson@uams.edu> 
Sent: Friday, July 15, 2022 11:05 AM
To: Kathryn Irby <Kathryn.Irby@arkansas.gov>; Charsie Gordon
<charsiegordon@taylorkinglaw.com>; ASCC Pleadings <ASCCPleadings@arkansas.gov>
Cc: MCGHEE, SHELLY <SMcghee@uams.edu>; Katie Davis <katiedavis@taylorkinglaw.com>
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


 


Due to a scheduling conflict for UAMS, the Claims Commission has rescheduled the 


hearing on UAMS’ pending motion for summary judgment for Thursday, December 15, 2022, 


beginning at 9:00 a.m. All parties will attend via Zoom. The Zoom invitation is enclosed herein. 


 


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
To: Charsie Gordon; Kathryn Irby
Cc: ASCC Pleadings; MCGHEE, SHELLY; Katie Davis
Subject: RE: HEARING RESCHEDULED: Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008
Date: Friday, July 15, 2022 12:03:12 PM
Attachments: image001.png

Thank you! That works for me as well.
 
Sherri
 
From: Charsie Gordon <charsiegordon@taylorkinglaw.com> 
Sent: Friday, July 15, 2022 11:26 AM
To: Kathryn Irby <Kathryn.Irby@arkansas.gov>
Cc: Robinson, Sherri <SLRobinson@uams.edu>; ASCC Pleadings <ASCCPleadings@arkansas.gov>;
MCGHEE, SHELLY <SMcghee@uams.edu>; Katie Davis <katiedavis@taylorkinglaw.com>
Subject: Re: HEARING RESCHEDULED: Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008
 
Dec. 15 works for me. Thanks.
 
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

 
On Fri, Jul 15, 2022 at 11:13 AM Kathryn Irby <Kathryn.Irby@arkansas.gov> wrote:

I can move it to December 15. Please see attached. New Zoom invite included in the attached
letter and also set out below. Thanks!
 
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
 
I am on vacation during the week of October 10. Can we possibly move the hearing to the
November schedule?
 
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
 
Attached please find our Response for the Motion for Summary Judgment with a Brief in Support
on behalf of Ms. Westcott for filing in the above referenced case. I am serving a copy to Ms.
Robinson via this email as well.
 
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
message is not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution, or copying of this email is strictly prohibited. If
you receive this transmission in error, please immediately notify us and delete this message. Taylor King Law accepts no liability for damage caused
by any virus transmitted by emails.

 
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
Cc: Kathryn Irby <kathryn.irby@arkansas.gov>; MCGHEE, SHELLY <SMcghee@uams.edu>;
Charsie <charsiegordon@taylorkinglaw.com>
Subject: Sabrena Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008 - UAMS Motion for Summary Judgment
 
Dear Director Irby,
 
Attached please find the Motion for Summary Judgment and Brief in Support on behalf of
UAMS for filing in the above referenced case. I am serving a copy of the filing on Ms. Gordon via
this email as well.
 
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
intended recipient(s) and may contain confidential and privileged information. Any
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
To: Robinson, Sherri; Charsie Gordon
Cc: MCGHEE, SHELLY; Katie Davis
Subject: HEARING RESCHEDULED: Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008
Date: Tuesday, October 25, 2022 2:53:00 PM
Attachments: Westcott v. UAMS -- 190008 -- hearing resched ltr (motion).pdf

image001.png

Ms. Gordon and Ms. Robinson, please see attached hearing rescheduling letter. Let me know if there
are any questions.
 
Thanks,
Kathryn Irby
 
 
Kathryn Irby
Arkansas State Claims Commission
101 East Capitol Avenue, Suite 410
Little Rock, Arkansas 72201
(501) 682-2822
 
 
 

From: Kathryn Irby 
Sent: Friday, July 15, 2022 11:13 AM
To: Robinson, Sherri <SLRobinson@uams.edu>; Charsie Gordon
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


 


October 25, 2022 


 


 


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


 


Due to an internal scheduling conflict, the Claims Commission has rescheduled the hearing 


on UAMS’ pending motion for summary judgment for Friday, February 10, 2023, beginning at 


9:00 a.m. All parties will attend via Zoom. The new Zoom invitation is enclosed herein. 


 


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


Time: Feb 10, 2023 09:00 AM Central Time (US and Canada) 


 


Join Zoom Meeting 


https://us06web.zoom.us/j/87579091104?pwd=bkRDL2lFUnZUclhSUE8wS2ZLOGVpZz09 


 


Meeting ID: 875 7909 1104 


Passcode: 6EPTmJ 


One tap mobile 


+13092053325,,87579091104#,,,,*124942# US 


+13126266799,,87579091104#,,,,*124942# US (Chicago) 


 


Dial by your location 


        +1 309 205 3325 US 


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


        +1 360 209 5623 US 


        +1 386 347 5053 US 


        +1 564 217 2000 US 


        +1 669 444 9171 US 


        +1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) 


        +1 719 359 4580 US 


Meeting ID: 875 7909 1104 


Passcode: 124942 


Find your local number: https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kd3oe4TIYF 


 











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

296



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
To: Charsie Gordon
Subject: RE: HEARING RESCHEDULED: Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008
Date: Tuesday, January 17, 2023 1:38:00 PM
Attachments: image002.jpg

image003.png

I see what you mean, and thank you for bringing the vague language to my attention. That sentence
is intended to mean that a representative for each party should be in attendance via Zoom. Whether
your client is present is up to you and your client, but the Commission will not be taking testimony.
 
Thanks,
Kathryn Irby
 

From: Charsie Gordon <charsiegordon@taylorkinglaw.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, January 17, 2023 1:09 PM
To: Kathryn Irby <Kathryn.Irby@arkansas.gov>
Subject: Re: HEARING RESCHEDULED: Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008
 
Thank you. Just wanted to be sure since the hearing noticed stated all parties. 
 
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

 
The information in this email is legally privileged and confidential information intended only for the use of the addressee(s). If
the reader of this message is not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution, or
copying of this email is strictly prohibited. If you receive this transmission in error, please immediately notify us and delete
this message. Taylor King Law accepts no liability for damage caused by any virus transmitted by emails.

 

From: Kathryn Irby <Kathryn.Irby@arkansas.gov>
Sent: Tuesday, January 17, 2023 1:01 PM
To: Charsie Gordon <charsiegordon@taylorkinglaw.com>
Subject: RE: HEARING RESCHEDULED: Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008
 
Ms. Gordon, as this is a motion hearing, the Claims Commission will not be taking testimony.
 
Thanks,
Kathryn Irby
 

From: Charsie Gordon <charsiegordon@taylorkinglaw.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, January 17, 2023 10:17 AM
To: Kathryn Irby <Kathryn.Irby@arkansas.gov>
Subject: Re: HEARING RESCHEDULED: Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008
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Ms. Irby,
 
Will my client need to be present for the hearing?
 
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
Sent: Tuesday, October 25, 2022 2:53 PM
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
To: Robinson, Sherri; Kathryn Irby
Cc: MCGHEE, SHELLY; Katie Davis
Subject: Re: HEARING DATE CHANGE: Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008
Date: Tuesday, January 31, 2023 3:07:24 PM
Attachments: image001.png

The 9th works for me as well.

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

The information in this email is legally privileged and confidential information intended only for the use
of the addressee(s). If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified
that any dissemination, distribution, or copying of this email is strictly prohibited. If you receive this
transmission in error, please immediately notify us and delete this message. Taylor King Law accepts
no liability for damage caused by any virus transmitted by emails.

From: Robinson, Sherri <SLRobinson@uams.edu>
Sent: Tuesday, January 31, 2023 2:54 PM
To: Kathryn Irby <Kathryn.Irby@arkansas.gov>; Charsie Gordon
<charsiegordon@taylorkinglaw.com>
Cc: MCGHEE, SHELLY <SMcghee@uams.edu>; Katie Davis <katiedavis@taylorkinglaw.com>
Subject: RE: HEARING DATE CHANGE: Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008
 
Ms. Irby,

That date is fine with UAMS.
 
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
Sent: Tuesday, January 31, 2023 1:25 PM
To: Robinson, Sherri <SLRobinson@uams.edu>; Charsie Gordon
<charsiegordon@taylorkinglaw.com>
Cc: MCGHEE, SHELLY <SMcghee@uams.edu>; Katie Davis <katiedavis@taylorkinglaw.com>
Subject: HEARING DATE CHANGE: Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008
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This Message Is From an External Sender
This message came from outside your organization.

 
Ms. Gordon and Ms. Robinson, due to a scheduling issue, the Claims Commission has moved this hearing from February 10 to February 9, 2023. It is scheduled for 9am, although there are a number of motions in various claims set at that same time. 
ZjQcmQRYFpfptBannerStart

ZjQcmQRYFpfptBannerEnd

Ms. Gordon and Ms. Robinson, due to a scheduling issue, the Claims Commission has moved this
hearing from February 10 to February 9, 2023. It is scheduled for 9am, although there are a number
of motions in various claims set at that same time. A new Zoom invitation is below. Please log on no
later than 8:55am for a quick sound check.
 
If the February 9 date is unworkable for either party, please let me know, and I’ll move this hearing
to the next available docket slot.
 
Thanks,
Kathryn Irby
 
 
Kathryn Irby -- Claims Commission is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting.
 
Topic: Claims Commission -- hearings
Time: Feb 9, 2023 09:00 AM Central Time (US and Canada)
 
Join Zoom Meeting
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/83991263511?pwd=RVpRbjRwWHI3UnRUZXJTbk9vZUtNUT09
 
Meeting ID: 839 9126 3511
Passcode: x9RGig
One tap mobile
+13126266799,,83991263511#,,,,*974920# US (Chicago)
+16469313860,,83991263511#,,,,*974920# US
 
Dial by your location
        +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago)
        +1 646 931 3860 US
        +1 929 436 2866 US (New York)
        +1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC)
        +1 305 224 1968 US
        +1 309 205 3325 US
        +1 719 359 4580 US
        +1 253 205 0468 US
        +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma)
        +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston)
        +1 360 209 5623 US
        +1 386 347 5053 US
        +1 507 473 4847 US
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        +1 564 217 2000 US
        +1 669 444 9171 US
        +1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose)
        +1 689 278 1000 US
Meeting ID: 839 9126 3511
Passcode: 974920
Find your local number: https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kbKzYxItX7
 
 

From: Kathryn Irby 
Sent: Tuesday, October 25, 2022 2:54 PM
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
Cc: Charsie Gordon
Subject: RE: Question for Westcott hearing
Date: Wednesday, February 8, 2023 10:52:00 AM
Attachments: image001.png

Sherri, the commissioners have the video exhibits attached to your MSJ and Claimant’s response.
 
Thanks,
Kathryn
 

From: Robinson, Sherri <SLRobinson@uams.edu> 
Sent: Wednesday, February 8, 2023 10:50 AM
To: Kathryn Irby <kathryn.irby@arkansas.gov>
Cc: Charsie Gordon <charsiegordon@taylorkinglaw.com>
Subject: Question for Westcott hearing
 
Good morning, Kathryn,
 
I have a quick question regarding the hearing in the Sebrena Westcott case tomorrow. Both Charsie
and I submitted the video of Ms. Westcott’s fall to the Commission. The video is 1 minute and 5
seconds. Will the Commissioners have watched it already, or do I need to have the video ready to
play during the hearing?
 
Also, I will have a law clerk attending with me, and I thought it would be easier to send you his name
in case you need it for the minutes. His name is Abijah Kratochvil.
 
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
Date: Thursday, February 9, 2023 9:05:00 AM
Attachments: image001.png

No worries – we can see you, but we cannot hear you.
 
Kathryn
 

From: Charsie Gordon <charsiegordon@taylorkinglaw.com> 
Sent: Thursday, February 9, 2023 9:00 AM
To: Robinson, Sherri <SLRobinson@uams.edu>; Kathryn Irby <Kathryn.Irby@arkansas.gov>
Cc: MCGHEE, SHELLY <SMcghee@uams.edu>; Katie Davis <katiedavis@taylorkinglaw.com>
Subject: Re: HEARING DATE CHANGE: Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008
 
I seem to be having some computer issues. I apologize. 
 
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
Sent: Tuesday, January 31, 2023 3:07 PM
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

 

V. CLAIM NO. 190008 

 

UNIVERSITY OF ARKANSAS FOR 

MEDICAL SCIENCES  RESPONDENT 

 

 

ORDER 

 Now before the Arkansas State Claims Commission (the “Claims Commission”) is the 

motion filed by the University of Arkansas for Medical Sciences (UAMS or the “Respondent”) for 

summary judgment as to the claim of Sebrena Westcott (the “Claimant”). At the hearing on 

February 9, 2023, Charsie Gordon appeared on behalf of Claimant, and Sherri L. Robinson 

appeared on Respondent’s behalf. Based upon a review of the motion, the arguments therein and 

by the parties at hearing, and the law of the State of Arkansas, the Claims Commission hereby 

finds as follows: 

1. On July 2, 2018, Claimant filed her claim seeking $15,000 in damages after she 

tripped on a rug in the doorway of Respondent’s emergency room and sustained injuries. 

2. Respondent filed an answer denying liability. 

3. Respondent subsequently filed the instant motion for summary judgment, arguing 

that Claimant cannot prove the required elements of a negligence claim because her fall “was 

caused by another visitor kicking up the rug less than one minute before Westcott passed through,” 

such that Claimant’s fall was not foreseeable to Respondent. See Respondent’s Brief in Support of 

the Motion for Summary Judgment at p. 5. In support of its motion, Respondent attached the video 

of the fall, a declaration of Assistant Director in the Respondent’s Office of Health and Safety 

Sonja Hart, and a letter stating that Claimant’s medical bills were covered in full by the Municipal 

Health Benefit Program.  
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4. Claimant responded, arguing that the video shows that the “rug was already 

disturbed and lying askew over the threshold of the door” when the two men walked through the 

doorway prior to Claimant. See Claimant’s Response at p. 2. Claimant noted that while footage of 

the “entire day of the incident” was requested, Claimant received “a little over a minute’s worth 

of video.” 

5. At the hearing, Respondent argued that AutoZone v. Horton, 87 Ark. App. 349, 192 

S.W.3d 291 (2004), is directly on point to this matter. Respondent also argued that the video is the 

best evidence and that Ms. Hart’s declaration is unrefuted. 

6. Claimant responded, arguing that there are spoliation issues with the video and that 

the hazard was already there was the two men came through the doorway before Claimant. 

7. Respondent replied, arguing that conclusory allegations are insufficient to create a 

question of fact to defeat summary judgment. Respondent also argued that there is no doubt that 

the first man created the issue with the rug in the doorway. 

8. Pursuant to Rule 56(c)(2), summary judgment is appropriate when there are no 

genuine issues as to any material fact, and the moving party is entitled to judgment as a matter of 

law. See Hisaw v. State Farm Mut. Auto Ins. Co., 353 Ark. 668, 122 S.W.3d 1 (2003). Summary 

judgment motions are subject to a shifting burden, in that once the moving party has made a prima 

facie showing of entitlement to summary judgment, “the burden then shifts to the nonmoving party 

to show that material questions of fact remain.” Flentje v. First Nat’l Bank of Wynne, 340 Ark. 

563, 569, 11 S.W.3d 531, 536 (2000). Summary judgment is useful “when there is no real issue of 

fact to be decided.” Hughes W. World, Inc. v. Westmoore Mfg Co., 269 Ark. 300, 301, 601 S.W.2d 

826, 826 (1980). 

9. The Claims Commission finds that there are genuine issues of material fact 

regarding the video, such that summary judgment is not appropriate at this time. 
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10. Respondent’s motion for summary judgment is DENIED, and this claim will be set 

for hearing. 

 IT IS SO ORDERED. 

      
     _______________________________________ 

ARKANSAS STATE CLAIMS COMMISSION 
Dexter Booth 

       
      _______________________________________ 
      ARKANSAS STATE CLAIMS COMMISSION 

Henry Kinslow 

       
      _______________________________________ 

ARKANSAS STATE CLAIMS COMMISSION 
Paul Morris, Chair 

 
      DATE: March 27, 2023 
 
 
 
 
 

Notice(s) which may apply to your claim 

 

(1) A party has forty (40) days from the date of this Order to file a Motion for Reconsideration or a Notice of Appeal 
with the Claims Commission. Ark. Code Ann. § 19-10-211(a)(1). If a Motion for Reconsideration is denied, that 
party then has twenty (20) days from the date of the denial of the Motion for Reconsideration to file a Notice of 
Appeal with the Claims Commission. Ark. Code Ann. § 19-10-211(a)(1)(B)(ii). A decision of the Claims 
Commission may only be appealed to the General Assembly. Ark. Code Ann. § 19-10-211(a)(3). 
 

(2) If a Claimant is awarded less than $15,000.00 by the Claims Commission at hearing, that claim is held forty (40) 
days from the date of disposition before payment will be processed. See Ark. Code Ann. § 19-10-211(a). Note: This 
does not apply to agency admissions of liability and negotiated settlement agreements. 
 

(3) Awards or negotiated settlement agreements of $15,000.00 or more are referred to the General Assembly for approval 
and authorization to pay. Ark. Code Ann. § 19-10-215(b). 
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From: Kathryn Irby
To: Robinson, Sherri; MCGHEE, SHELLY
Cc: Charsie Gordon
Subject: ORDER: Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008
Date: Monday, March 27, 2023 9:16:00 AM
Attachments: Westcott -- 190008 -- hearing -- order.pdf

Ms. Gordon and Ms. Robinson, please see attached order. Once you’ve had an opportunity to review
the order, will the parties please confer and let me know how long they expect will be required for a
hearing on this claim? I will need that information before I can add this claim to the hearing docket.
 
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







3 
 


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
To: Robinson, Sherri; Charsie Gordon; MCGHEE, SHELLY
Subject: RE: ORDER: Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008
Date: Tuesday, March 28, 2023 8:45:00 AM
Attachments: image001.png

Sherri, thanks for this information. If you and Ms. Gordon will have a conversation in the next few
weeks what, if any, live testimony, will be needed, that will allow the parties to give me a more
specific time needed. If only two hours is needed, I’ll be able to schedule this hearing sooner than if
an entire day is needed.
 
Thanks,
Kathryn
 

From: Robinson, Sherri <SLRobinson@uams.edu> 
Sent: Monday, March 27, 2023 1:34 PM
To: Charsie Gordon <charsiegordon@taylorkinglaw.com>; Kathryn Irby
<Kathryn.Irby@arkansas.gov>; MCGHEE, SHELLY <SMcghee@uams.edu>
Subject: RE: ORDER: Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008
 
Director Irby,
 
Currently, I am available for a hearing beginning in December 2023 and into early 2024 (I checked
through March). Based on the evidence in this matter, a hearing should not take more than 2 hours
as much of the information is uncontested. Prior to hearing, I will work with Ms. Gordon to produce
a statement of undisputed facts so that we can streamline the matter for the Commission.
 
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
Sent: Monday, March 27, 2023 10:35 AM
To: Kathryn Irby <Kathryn.Irby@arkansas.gov>; Robinson, Sherri <SLRobinson@uams.edu>;
MCGHEE, SHELLY <SMcghee@uams.edu>
Subject: Re: ORDER: Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008
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This message came from outside your organization.

 
I do not see us needing more than one day. Thanks, Charsie Charsie Gordon Attorney at Law | Taylor King Law 820 W 3rd Street, Little Rock, AR 72201 P: (870) 246-0505 F: (501) 229-7010 charsiegordon@ taylorkinglaw. com | www. taylorkinglaw. com
ZjQcmQRYFpfptBannerStart

ZjQcmQRYFpfptBannerEnd

I do not see us needing more than one day.
 
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
Sent: Monday, March 27, 2023 10:28 AM
To: Charsie Gordon <charsiegordon@taylorkinglaw.com>; Robinson, Sherri
<SLRobinson@uams.edu>; MCGHEE, SHELLY <SMcghee@uams.edu>
Subject: RE: ORDER: Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008
 
Charsie, before I can send any dates, I need for the parties to confer about how long each side will
need for the hearing.
 
That said, we’re looking at late 2023 or early 2024 right now. The Commission docket is very, very
full.
 
Kathryn
 

From: Charsie Gordon <charsiegordon@taylorkinglaw.com> 
Sent: Monday, March 27, 2023 10:26 AM
To: Kathryn Irby <Kathryn.Irby@arkansas.gov>; Robinson, Sherri <SLRobinson@uams.edu>;
MCGHEE, SHELLY <SMcghee@uams.edu>
Subject: Re: ORDER: Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008
 
My schedule is pretty full. I will need dates June or later. 
 
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
Sent: Monday, March 27, 2023 9:16 AM
To: Robinson, Sherri <SLRobinson@uams.edu>; MCGHEE, SHELLY <SMcghee@uams.edu>
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
Date: Monday, April 10, 2023 11:17:00 AM
Attachments: image001.png

Sherri, thanks for this information.
 
Sherri and Charsie, I have moved this claim to my list of to-be-scheduled 2024 hearings. As soon as I
have my hearing schedule set for 2024, I’ll start getting these set. I expect it will be sometime this
summer.
 
Thanks,
Kathryn
 

From: Robinson, Sherri <SLRobinson@uams.edu> 
Sent: Monday, April 10, 2023 10:04 AM
To: Kathryn Irby <Kathryn.Irby@arkansas.gov>; Charsie Gordon
<charsiegordon@taylorkinglaw.com>; MCGHEE, SHELLY <SMcghee@uams.edu>
Subject: RE: ORDER: Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008
 
Kathryn,
 
I am not available in November. Charsie and I are conferring to see if we can get a good idea of the
time needed for a hearing.
 
Sherri
 
From: Kathryn Irby <Kathryn.Irby@arkansas.gov> 
Sent: Saturday, April 8, 2023 11:20 AM
To: Charsie Gordon <charsiegordon@taylorkinglaw.com>; Robinson, Sherri
<SLRobinson@uams.edu>; MCGHEE, SHELLY <SMcghee@uams.edu>
Subject: RE: ORDER: Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008
 
Sherri and Charsie, I know Sherri mentioned December 2023 in her email, but I have an opening in the docket on November 8, 2023. If this works for both parties, I will get a hearing letter sent out next week. Kathryn From: Charsie Gordon <charsiegordon@ taylorkinglaw. com>
ZjQcmQRYFpfptBannerStart

ZjQcmQRYFpfptBannerEnd

Sherri and Charsie, I know Sherri mentioned December 2023 in her email, but I have an opening in
the docket on November 8, 2023. If this works for both parties, I will get a hearing letter sent out
next week.
 
Kathryn
 

From: Charsie Gordon <charsiegordon@taylorkinglaw.com> 
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Sent: Friday, April 7, 2023 1:56 PM
To: Robinson, Sherri <SLRobinson@uams.edu>; Kathryn Irby <Kathryn.Irby@arkansas.gov>;
MCGHEE, SHELLY <SMcghee@uams.edu>
Subject: Re: ORDER: Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008
 
Director Irby, 
 
I will agree that it should not take more than a few hours. 
 
 
Everyone have a nice weekend.
 
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
Date: Tuesday, April 11, 2023 3:10:00 PM
Attachments: image001.png

Appreciate this help. I will be back in touch once I have a hearing date for you.
 
Kathryn
 

From: Robinson, Sherri <SLRobinson@uams.edu> 
Sent: Tuesday, April 11, 2023 11:41 AM
To: Kathryn Irby <Kathryn.Irby@arkansas.gov>; Charsie Gordon
<charsiegordon@taylorkinglaw.com>; MCGHEE, SHELLY <SMcghee@uams.edu>
Subject: RE: ORDER: Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008
 
Kathryn,
 
Charsie and I have conferred and agree that 2 hours will be good, and we will work together to
streamline things for the Commission.
 
Sherri
 
From: Kathryn Irby <Kathryn.Irby@arkansas.gov> 
Sent: Monday, April 10, 2023 11:18 AM
To: Robinson, Sherri <SLRobinson@uams.edu>; Charsie Gordon
<charsiegordon@taylorkinglaw.com>; MCGHEE, SHELLY <SMcghee@uams.edu>
Subject: RE: ORDER: Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008
 
Sherri, thanks for this information. Sherri and Charsie, I have moved this claim to my list of to-be-scheduled 2024 hearings. As soon as I have my hearing schedule set for 2024, I’ll start getting these set. I expect it will be sometime this
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
Subject: CLAIM HEARING SCHEDULED: Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008
Date: Thursday, August 10, 2023 3:06:00 PM
Attachments: image001.png

Westcott v. UAMS -- 190008 -- hearing sched ltr.pdf

Charsie and Sherri, please see attached hearing letter and Zoom invitation.
 
Thanks,
Kathryn Irby
 
 
Kathryn Irby
Arkansas State Claims Commission
101 East Capitol Avenue, Suite 410
Little Rock, Arkansas 72201
(501) 682-2822
 
 
 

From: Kathryn Irby <Kathryn.Irby@arkansas.gov> 
Sent: Tuesday, April 11, 2023 3:11 PM
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


 


August 10, 2023 


 


 


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


 


The Claims Commission has scheduled a two-hour hearing on the above-referenced claim 


for Friday, January 19, 2024, beginning at 9:00 a.m. All parties will attend via Zoom. If either 


party objects to the Zoom format, a written objection must be submitted via email 


(kathryn.irby@arkansas.gov) or mail no later than August 16, 2023. The Zoom invitation is 


enclosed. 


 


The following prehearing materials are due by December 22, 2023: 


 


• Each party’s list of witnesses who will testify live at the hearing or via deposition; 


• Each party’s list of exhibits that may be introduced at the hearing; 


• Deposition transcripts if any deposition testimony will be submitted in lieu of live 


testimony; 


• Prehearing briefs if either party would like to submit for Commission review; and 


• Subpoena requests (absent a showing of good cause, the Commission will not issue 


subpoenas for requests received after the prehearing material deadline). 


 


 


 


 


 







 


 


 


 


To the extent that either party intends to file a motion of any kind, absent a showing of 


good cause, the motion must be submitted in sufficient time to allow the motion to be fully briefed 


pursuant to the Arkansas Rules of Civil Procedure by December 22, 2023.  


 


Please note that a copy of any filing must be served upon the opposing party in accordance 


with the Arkansas Rules of Civil Procedure. 


 


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


Time: Jan 19, 2024 09:00 AM Central Time (US and Canada) 


 


Join Zoom Meeting 


https://us06web.zoom.us/j/85350621789?pwd=MmlYZmYrajg1VTlLVzBMN3hrcUN0UT09 


 


Meeting ID: 853 5062 1789 


Passcode: D8HHRg 


 


One tap mobile 


+13126266799,,85350621789#,,,,*408463# US (Chicago) 


+16469313860,,85350621789#,,,,*408463# US 


 


Dial by your location 


• +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 


• +1 646 931 3860 US 


 


Meeting ID: 853 5062 1789 


Passcode: 408463 


 


Find your local number: https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kck4S1YGtn 


 


  











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
Cc: Charsie Gordon; MCGHEE, SHELLY
Subject: Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008 - Pre-Hearing Filings on behalf of UAMS
Date: Thursday, December 21, 2023 1:46:46 PM
Attachments: image001.png

Westcott - Joint Stip of Facts.pdf
Westcott - UAMS Witness and Exhibit List.pdf
Westcott - UAMS Pre-hearing Brief.pdf

Dear Director Irby,
 
Attached are the following Pre-Hearing Filings in the above referenced case: (1) Joint Stipulations of
Fact; (2) UAMS Witness and Exhibit List; and (3) UAMS Pre-Hearing Brief. Please do not hesitate to
contact me if you have any questions.
 
Thank you for your assistance and Happy Holidays.
 
Respectfully,
 
Sherri L. Robinson
Sr. Associate General Counsel
Office of General Counsel

University of Arkansas for Medical Sciences
4301 W. Markham St., #860
Little Rock, AR 72205-7199
Main: 501-686-7964; Mitel: 10648
Email: SLRobinson@UAMS.edu

UAMS.edu|UAMSHealth.com
 

 

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


 


RESPONDENT’S WITNESS AND EXHIBIT LISTS FOR 


HEARING SCHEDULED ON JANUARY 19, 2024 
 


 Comes now Respondent, University of Arkansas for Medical Sciences 


(UAMS), by and through its undersigned counsel, and for its Witness and Exhibit 


Lists, states as follows: 


Witness List 


1. Sonja Hart, Assistant Director in the Office of Health and Safety at UAMS. 


Exhibit List 


1. Video clip of Ms. Westcott’s trip and fall. 


2. Video clip of Ms. Hart’s testing of the automatic doors. 


3. Correspondence with counsel regarding payment of medical bills by MHBP. 


4. Medical records if not stipulated to by the parties. 


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


was served on claimant herein by emailing a copy of same this 21st day of 


December, 2023 to the following: 
 


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


 


RESPONDENT’S PRE-HEARING BRIEF 
 


 Comes now Respondent, University of Arkansas for Medical Sciences 


(UAMS), by and through its undersigned counsel, and for its Pre-Hearing Brief, 


states as follows: 


Summary of Facts and Expected Testimony. 


Sabrena Westcott’s trip and fall on the rug in the entryway of the UAMS 


emergency room (ER) on September 16, 2017 was an unfortunate accident. The 


video footage of the incident is the best evidence of this accident. Westcott’s fall was 


captured on video which shows that less than one minute before she fell, another 


gentleman walked into the entryway kicking up the rug slightly. Approximately 45 


seconds after the first man walked through, a second man walked through the 


entryway with no problem. Only 12 seconds after the second man walked through 


the entryway, Westcott walked in and the toe of her right foot kicked up the rug 


causing her to fall on her face and arms suffering injuries.  


Sonja Hart, Assistant Director in the Office of Health and Safety at UAMS, 


will testify that UAMS is not aware of other falls in this area in the three years prior 


to Westcott’s fall. Additionally, Ms. Hart will testify that she conducted testing of the 


door to see if the rug across the automatic door threshold would cause the door to 


stay open as argued by Claimant’s counsel in response to summary judgment. Ms. 
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Hart will testify that only locking the doors open would keep the doors open as they 


were when Westcott fell. Westcott has no evidence that UAMS should have been on 


notice that there was a slight bump in the rug that could cause someone to trip and 


no evidence that UAMS was negligent in maintaining the emergency room 


entryway. 


Summary of Applicable Law.  


 To recover on an action for negligence, Westcott must show that UAMS 


owed her a duty, breached that duty and the breach caused her harm. Lloyd v. Pier 


West Property Owners Assoc., 2015 Ark. App. 487, 4, 470 S.W.3d 293, 297 (citation 


omitted). Westcott was a business invitee; thus, UAMS “had a duty to use ordinary 


care in maintaining its premises in a reasonably safe condition.” House v. Wal-Mart 


Stores, Inc., 316 Ark. 221, 223, 872 S.W.2d 52, 52 (1994). This duty applies, however, 


only when the danger is foreseeable. Benson v. Shuler Drilling Co., 316 Ark. 101, 112, 


871 S.W.3d 552, 558 (1994). There is no duty to guard against merely possible, as 


opposed to probable, harm. Ethyl Corp. v. Johnson, 345 Ark. 476, 481-82, 49 S.W.3d 


644, 648 (2001).” Id. (emphasis added). The simple fact that Westcott fell on UAMS 


property “does not give rise to an inference of negligence.” See House v. Wal-Mart 


Stores, Inc., supra (citation omitted) (emphasis added). See also, AutoZone v. Horton, 


87 Ark. App. 349, 354, 192 S.W.3d 291, 295 (2004). “The burden of proof is always 


on the party asserting negligence, as negligence is never presumed.” AutoZone v. 


Horton, 87 Ark. App. at 354, 192 S.W.3d 291, 295 (citation omitted). 


Locke v. Continental Cas. Co. and AutoZone v. Horton are two Arkansas trip and 


fall cases that are instructive in this matter. In the AutoZone case, the plaintiff tripped 
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“after her foot was caught in an unsecured doormat that protruded above the surface 


of an abutted doormat” as she entered the store, and she fell on her face and shoulder 


causing injuries. AutoZone, 87 Ark. App. at 350, 192 S.W.3d at 293. Two former 


employees of AutoZone testified that while they had seen the mats curl up and even 


tripped on the mats themselves, they had never seen a customer trip on the mats. Id. 


at 352, 192 S.W.3d at 293.  The Court of Appeals found the plaintiff did not present 


substantial evidence to establish AutoZone knew the mats were a “tripping hazard,” 


and AutoZone did not breach its duty of care. Id. at 355, 192 S.W.3d at 296. 


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


The video shows that the rug was fine only one-minute prior Westcott’s 


arrival. Even after kicked up by a visitor, another individual walked through the area 


with no problem. Moreover, while the presence of a rug could possibly (i.e., may or 


may not) lead to harm, it does not rise to the required level of probable (i.e., likely) 


harm articulated by the Arkansas Supreme Court.1 Here, two individuals walked 


through before Westcott and did not fall. Additionally, UAMS is not aware of any 


other falls in this area for the three years prior to Westcott’s fall, and Westcott has no 


evidence to the contrary.  


Damages. 


The Municipal Health Benefit Program (MHBP) indicated that it would pay 


the insurance claims associated with the treatment of Westcott’s injuries which were 


sustained in the course and scope of her work. According to Westcott’s attorney, all 


of those bills were presented to MHBP for payment. However, counsel indicates that 


Westcott’s unpaid medical bills for her fall total $2,576.78 - $641.78 to UAMS and 


$1,935 to Baptist Health. If the Commission determines that UAMS is liable, 


Westcott should be required to provide evidence of why those bills were not covered 


by MHBP. 


Conclusion. 


 Westcott maintains the burden throughout this proceeding to prove by a 


preponderance of the evidence that UAMS was negligent and therefore liable for her 


                                                 
1 See Merriam-Webster Dictionary (https://www.merriam-webster.com/) for definitions of possible 


versus probable.  



https://www.merriam-webster.com/
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damages. Westcott cannot meet that burden. Westcott’s fall, while regrettable, was 


caused by another visitor kicking up the rug less than one minute before Westcott 


passed through; and accordingly, it was not foreseeable by UAMS. As a result, 


UAMS is entitled to judgment in this matter. 


WHEREFORE, Respondent requests that the Commission find in favor of 


UAMS and for all other relief to which it may be entitled. 


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


 
I, Sherri L. Robinson, do hereby certify that a copy of the foregoing was 


served on claimant herein by emailing a copy of same this 21st day of December, 


2023, to the following: 


 


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

3. Correspondence with counsel regarding payment of medical bills . 

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

.  

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
To: Robinson, Sherri; ASCC Pleadings
Cc: MCGHEE, SHELLY; Bobby Wheeler; Kathryn Irby
Subject: Re: Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008 - Pre-Hearing Filings on behalf of UAMS
Date: Friday, December 22, 2023 2:09:17 PM
Attachments: image001.png

Witness and Exhibit List- Westcott.pdf

Please see attached Witness and Exhibit List for the Plaintiff. Let me know if you have any
questions or need anything else.

I hope everyone has a great holiday.

Charsie

      
Charsie Gordon
Attorney at Law | Taylor King Law
820 W 3rd Street, Little Rock, AR 72201
P: (870) 246-0505 F: (501)712-2543
charsiegordon@taylorkinglaw.com | www.taylorkinglaw.com

From: Robinson, Sherri <SLRobinson@uams.edu>
Sent: Thursday, December 21, 2023 1:46 PM
To: ASCC Pleadings <ASCCPleadings@arkansas.gov>
Cc: Charsie Gordon <charsiegordon@taylorkinglaw.com>; MCGHEE, SHELLY <SMcghee@uams.edu>
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
Charsie Gordon | Attorney
Phone: (501) 712-2543
Email: charsiegordon@taylorkinglaw.com
Address: 820 West Third Street, Little Rock, AR,

72201

Logo

taylorkinglaw.com  
CONFIDENTIALITY NOTE: The information in this email is legally privileged and
confidential information intended only for the use of the addressee(s). If the reader of this
message is not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination,
distribution or copying of the email is strictly prohibited. If you receive this transmission in
error, please immediately notify us and delete the message. Taylor King Law accepts no
liability for damage caused by any virus transmitted by emails.
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From: Charsie Gordon
To: Kathryn Irby; Robinson, Sherri; ASCC Pleadings
Cc: MCGHEE, SHELLY
Subject: Re: Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008 - Pre-Hearing Filings on behalf of UAMS
Date: Thursday, January 18, 2024 10:48:43 AM
Attachments: image001.png

Director Irby,

I am unfortunately still stuck at my house due to the weather. I have been unable to get my car
out of my neighborhood all week. I had hopes for today but was unsuccessful. I have access to
limited resources at home, and therefore am asking to reschedule our hearing tomorrow. I
apologize for any inconvenience.  Please let me know the next availability you have for the
hearing. 

Again, I apologize for any inconvenience. 

Thanks,

Charsie

      
Charsie Gordon
Attorney at Law | Taylor King Law
820 W 3rd Street, Little Rock, AR 72201
P: (870) 246-0505   F: (501)712-2543
charsiegordon@taylorkinglaw.com | www.taylorkinglaw.com

From: Kathryn Irby <Kathryn.Irby@arkansas.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, December 27, 2023 8:22 AM
To: Charsie Gordon <charsiegordon@taylorkinglaw.com>; Robinson, Sherri
<SLRobinson@uams.edu>; ASCC Pleadings <ASCCPleadings@arkansas.gov>
Cc: MCGHEE, SHELLY <SMcghee@uams.edu>; Bobby Wheeler <bobbywheeler@taylorkinglaw.com>
Subject: RE: Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008 - Pre-Hearing Filings on behalf of UAMS
 
Received on 12/22/2023, thanks.
 
Kathryn Irby
 

From: Charsie Gordon <charsiegordon@taylorkinglaw.com> 
Sent: Friday, December 22, 2023 2:09 PM
To: Robinson, Sherri <SLRobinson@uams.edu>; ASCC Pleadings <ASCCPleadings@arkansas.gov>
Cc: MCGHEE, SHELLY <SMcghee@uams.edu>; Bobby Wheeler <bobbywheeler@taylorkinglaw.com>;
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

361

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
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.taylorkinglaw.com%2F&data=05%7C02%7CASCCPleadings%40arkansas.gov%7C289b35395a03453da73008dc18455271%7C5ec1d8f0cb624000b3278e63b0547048%7C0%7C0%7C638411933223712528%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=UhGpOmn%2Fk5mPZQtC%2FQIGSH2%2FPrRa6%2BjzVc3lhMQA3Ck%3D&reserved=0
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
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FOR J\AED[CAL SCIEL`lcES

Februay 13, 2024

Shcrri L. Robinson
Sr. Associate General Counsel
Tel.:   50li586-7608
Fax:    501rd86-7736

Awlares
state  claims  comrriBsion

FEB    1  4   2024

PECEIVED

Office Of General Counsel
4301 West Markham Street, #860

Little Rock, AR 72205-7199
SLRobinson@uams.edu

HANDDEELIVERY
Hon. Kathr]m Irby, Director
Arkansas State Claims Commission
101 E. Capitol Ave., Suite 410
Little Rock, AR 72201-3823

Re:         Slgz77ig7zcz  wriatcoff v.  I/14A4:S,  Claim No.190008

Dear Director Irty:

Enclosed is a flash drive with UAMS Exhibits 24 for the hearing scheduled in
the Westcott matter for February 23, 2024. For convenience, these exhibits are:

2. Video clip of Solria Hart's testing of the automatic doors
3 . Correspondence with counsel regarding payment of medical bills 
4. Medical records if not stipulated to by the parties

UAMS Exhibit 1 is the video clip of Ms. Westcott's fall which was previously
provided to the Commission with UAMS's Motion for Summary Judgment filed on
June 24, 2022. Both videos are very brief, and I would like to play them during UAMS
witness Solja Hart's testimony.

Please let me know if I need to provide any additional information prior to the
hearing.

Respectfully,

tr/.W-
Shelri L. Robinson
Sr. Associate General Counsel

End.
cc:        Ms. Charsie Gordon
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
Subject: Re: Westcott hearing
Date: Monday, December 11, 2023 10:29:23 AM
Attachments: image001.png

To my knowledge all medicals bills have been submitted.

      
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
Sent: Monday, December 11, 2023 10:16 AM
To: Charsie Gordon <charsiegordon@taylorkinglaw.com>
Subject: RE: Westcott hearing
 
Ok. Thanks.
 
UAMS will object to any medical bills that have not been previously submitted  for
consideration, so I wanted to see if you know whether any of these bills will fall into that category.
 
Sherri
 
From: Charsie Gordon <charsiegordon@taylorkinglaw.com> 
Sent: Monday, December 11, 2023 10:13 AM
To: Robinson, Sherri <SLRobinson@uams.edu>
Subject: Re: Westcott hearing
 
Sherri, I am unsure of that. Those are just balances shown for all bills related to her treatment. I do not receive anything that detailed, and balances you have to make phone calls for. Charsie Charsie Gordon Attorney at Law | Taylor King
ZjQcmQRYFpfptBannerStart

ZjQcmQRYFpfptBannerEnd

Sherri,
 
I am unsure of that. Those are just balances shown for all bills related to her treatment. I do
not receive anything that detailed, and balances you have to make phone calls for. 
 
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
Sent: Wednesday, December 6, 2023 11:41 AM
To: Charsie Gordon <charsiegordon@taylorkinglaw.com>
Subject: RE: Westcott hearing
 
Thanks, Charsie. Can you tell me if the amounts listed were incurred before or  decision
in May 2019?
 
From: Charsie Gordon <charsiegordon@taylorkinglaw.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, December 6, 2023 9:39 AM
To: Robinson, Sherri <SLRobinson@uams.edu>
Subject: Re: Westcott hearing
 
Sherri, UAMS has a balance of 641. 78 still owed from the 11,200. 48; Baptist has a balance of 1,935. 00 still owed from the 13,963. 17 Thanks, Charsie Charsie Gordon Attorney at Law | Taylor King Law 820 W 3rd Street, Little Rock, AR 72201 P: 
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
Sent: Monday, December 4, 2023 12:57 PM
To: Charsie Gordon <charsiegordon@taylorkinglaw.com>
Subject: Westcott hearing
 
Good afternoon, Charsie,
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I have started working on a Joint Stipulation of Facts for us to present to the Commission. Can you
please update discovery regarding Ms. Westcott’s medical bills? Based on the 

. I
seem to recall you stating that there were some outstanding. Can you please send me the total
owed as well as breakdown of the amounts?
 
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
Cc: Kathryn Irby; MCGHEE, SHELLY
Subject: Re: HEARING DATE CHANGE: Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008
Date: Tuesday, February 20, 2024 7:30:27 AM
Attachments: image001.png

It works for UAMS too.

Sherri

On Feb 19, 2024, at 4:27 PM, Charsie Gordon
<charsiegordon@taylorkinglaw.com> wrote:

﻿

<!--[if !((ie)|(mso))]-->

<!--[endif]-->
That date will work. Thanks.

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
Sent: Monday, February 19, 2024 2:11 PM
To: Robinson, Sherri <SLRobinson@uams.edu>; Charsie Gordon
<charsiegordon@taylorkinglaw.com>
Cc: MCGHEE, SHELLY <SMcghee@uams.edu>
Subject: HEARING DATE CHANGE: Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008
 
Charsie and Sherri, my panel for next Friday has had some unexpected conflicts arise
on that day, such that I will not have a quorum at the hearing. However, my panel can
be available the following week on Friday, March 1 beginning at noon. I am moving this
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hearing to that date. Please advise ASAP if that date will not work (although I realize
that today is a state holiday, so I am not expecting anyone to respond today). Apologies
for this inconvenience.
 
Thanks,
Kathryn
 
 
Kathryn Irby
Arkansas State Claims Commission
101 East Capitol Avenue, Suite 410
Little Rock, Arkansas 72201
(501) 682-2822
 
 

From: Kathryn Irby Kathryn.Irby@arkansas.gov 
Sent: Friday, February 16, 2024 10:36 AM
To: Robinson, Sherri SLRobinson@uams.edu; Charsie Gordon
charsiegordon@taylorkinglaw.com
Cc: MCGHEE, SHELLY SMcghee@uams.edu
Subject: NEW ZOOM INVITATION: Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008
 
Charsie and Sherri, below is the new Zoom invitation for February 23. Let me know if
there are any questions.
 
Charsie, if you can send me your exhibits ahead of time, that would be helpful so that
the commissioners have them and can pull them up on their computers. You’re
welcome to use the “share screen” feature on Zoom, too.
 
Thanks,
Kathryn
 
Kathryn Irby -- Claims Commission is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting.
 
Topic: Claims Commission -- hearings
Time: Feb 23, 2024 09:00 AM Central Time (US and Canada)
 
Join Zoom Meeting
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82875819369?
pwd=sAx2mzuxWUxcBcDIqyfpWzDupBsI6k.1
 
Meeting ID: 828 7581 9369
Passcode: 2bnrVV
 
---
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One tap mobile
+13126266799,,82875819369#,,,,*978668# US (Chicago)
+16469313860,,82875819369#,,,,*978668# US
 
---
 
Dial by your location
• +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago)
• +1 646 931 3860 US
• +1 929 436 2866 US (New York)
• +1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC)
• +1 305 224 1968 US
• +1 309 205 3325 US
• +1 689 278 1000 US
• +1 719 359 4580 US
• +1 253 205 0468 US
• +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma)
• +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston)
• +1 360 209 5623 US
• +1 386 347 5053 US
• +1 507 473 4847 US
• +1 564 217 2000 US
• +1 669 444 9171 US
• +1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose)
 
Meeting ID: 828 7581 9369
Passcode: 978668
 
Find your local number: https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kee3X5Hij7
 
 

From: Robinson, Sherri <SLRobinson@uams.edu> 
Sent: Thursday, January 18, 2024 12:40 PM
To: Charsie Gordon <charsiegordon@taylorkinglaw.com>; Kathryn Irby
<Kathryn.Irby@arkansas.gov>; ASCC Pleadings <ASCCPleadings@arkansas.gov>
Cc: MCGHEE, SHELLY <SMcghee@uams.edu>
Subject: RE: Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008 - Pre-Hearing Filings on behalf of
UAMS
 
UAMS is available February 23.
 
Thanks.
 
Sherri
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This Message Is From an External Sender
This message came from outside your organization.

From: Robinson, Sherri 
Sent: Thursday, January 18, 2024 12:35 PM
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
 
I have no objection to rescheduling. I am available on the morning of February 23 but
not the afternoon. Also, I will need to confirm that date with my witness.
 
 
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
 
<image001.png>

 
 
 
From: Charsie Gordon <charsiegordon@taylorkinglaw.com> 
Sent: Thursday, January 18, 2024 11:23 AM
To: Kathryn Irby <Kathryn.Irby@arkansas.gov>; Robinson, Sherri
<SLRobinson@uams.edu>; ASCC Pleadings <ASCCPleadings@arkansas.gov>
Cc: MCGHEE, SHELLY <SMcghee@uams.edu>
Subject: Re: Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008 - Pre-Hearing Filings on behalf of
UAMS
 
That date works for me. Charsie Gordon Attorney at Law | Taylor King Law 820 W 3rd Street, Little Rock, AR 72201 P: (870) 246-0505 F: (501)712-2543 charsiegordon@ taylorkinglaw. com | www. taylorkinglaw. com From: Kathryn Irby <Kathryn. Irby@ arkansas. gov>
ZjQcmQRYFpfptBannerStart

ZjQcmQRYFpfptBannerEnd

That date works for me. 
 
      
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
Sent: Thursday, January 18, 2024 11:21 AM
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
 
I have room on the February 23 docket. Is that a workable option for both parties?
 

From: Kathryn Irby <Kathryn.Irby@arkansas.gov> 
Sent: Thursday, January 18, 2024 11:17 AM
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
 
Charsie, this weather is proving to be difficult for sure. I will get this one rescheduled.
 
Sherri, if you object to this rescheduling, please let me know as soon as possible.
 
Kathryn
 

From: Charsie Gordon <charsiegordon@taylorkinglaw.com> 
Sent: Thursday, January 18, 2024 10:49 AM
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
 
I am unfortunately still stuck at my house due to the weather. I have been unable
to get my car out of my neighborhood all week. I had hopes for today but was
unsuccessful. I have access to limited resources at home, and therefore am asking
to reschedule our hearing tomorrow. I apologize for any inconvenience.  Please let
me know the next availability you have for the hearing. 
 
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
Cc: MCGHEE, SHELLY <SMcghee@uams.edu>; Bobby Wheeler
<bobbywheeler@taylorkinglaw.com>
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
<bobbywheeler@taylorkinglaw.com>; Kathryn Irby <Kathryn.Irby@arkansas.gov>
Subject: Re: Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008 - Pre-Hearing Filings on behalf of
UAMS
 
Please see attached Witness and Exhibit List for the Plaintiff. Let me know if you
have any questions or need anything else.
 
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
Cc: Charsie Gordon <charsiegordon@taylorkinglaw.com>; MCGHEE, SHELLY
<SMcghee@uams.edu>
Subject: Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008 - Pre-Hearing Filings on behalf of UAMS
 
Dear Director Irby,
 
Attached are the following Pre-Hearing Filings in the above referenced case: (1) Joint
Stipulations of Fact; (2) UAMS Witness and Exhibit List; and (3) UAMS Pre-Hearing Brief.
Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any questions.
 
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
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Confidentiality Notice: This e-mail message, including any attachments, is for the sole
use of the intended recipient(s) and may contain confidential and privileged
information. Any unauthorized review, use, disclosure or distribution is prohibited. If
you are not the intended recipient, please contact the sender by reply e-mail and
destroy all copies of the original message.
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
Subject: MARCH 1 ZOOM INVITATION: Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008
Date: Tuesday, February 20, 2024 1:09:00 PM

Charsie and Sherri, here is a new Zoom invitation for March 1. Please log in a few minutes before
noon.
 
Thanks,
Kathryn Irby
 
 
 
Kathryn Irby -- Claims Commission is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting.
 
Topic: Hearings
Time: Mar 1, 2024 12:00 PM Central Time (US and Canada)
 
Join Zoom Meeting
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/81455874969?pwd=axA0lk8n5OUZ6IgTp4iKB3CZ3K1oGO.1
 
Meeting ID: 814 5587 4969
Passcode: kbe7x4
 
---
 
One tap mobile
+13126266799,,81455874969#,,,,*111734# US (Chicago)
+16469313860,,81455874969#,,,,*111734# US
 
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
Passcode: 111734
 
Find your local number: https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kcwKghuaW
 
 

From: Robinson, Sherri <SLRobinson@uams.edu> 
Sent: Tuesday, February 20, 2024 7:30 AM
To: Charsie Gordon <charsiegordon@taylorkinglaw.com>
Cc: Kathryn Irby <kathryn.irby@arkansas.gov>; MCGHEE, SHELLY <SMcghee@uams.edu>
Subject: Re: HEARING DATE CHANGE: Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008
 
It works for UAMS too.
 
 
Sherri

On Feb 19, 2024, at 4:27 PM, Charsie Gordon <charsiegordon@taylorkinglaw.com>
wrote:

﻿
That date will work. Thanks. Charsie Charsie Gordon Attorney at Law | Taylor King Law 820 W 3rd Street, Little Rock, AR 72201 P: (870) 246-0505 F: (501)712-2543 charsiegordon@ taylorkinglaw. com | www. taylorkinglaw. com From: Kathryn Irby <Kathryn. Irby@ arkansas. gov>
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
To: Kathryn Irby; Robinson, Sherri
Cc: MCGHEE, SHELLY; Bobby Wheeler; Malorie Gilmer
Subject: Re: HEARING DATE CHANGE: Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008
Date: Wednesday, February 28, 2024 11:38:13 AM
Attachments: image001.png

Letter- Exhibits.pdf

Please see attached letter and below link. Let me know if there are any issues.

https://api.140905006327.genesisapi.com/v1/share/s/zcfDhtNzPL6u2N8naYOQNn-
I0OXHA28F68RklvJpBp0

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
Sent: Monday, February 19, 2024 4:27 PM
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
 
Charsie and Sherri, my panel for next Friday has had some unexpected conflicts arise on that day,
such that I will not have a quorum at the hearing. However, my panel can be available the following
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February 28, 2024 


 


Hon. Kathryn Irby, Director-Arkansas State Claims Commission 


101 E. Capitol Ave., Suite 410 


Little Rock, AR 72201 


 


Sherri Robinson-Office of General Counsel 


4301 W. Markham Street, #860 


Little Rock, AR 72205 


 


Re: Sebrena Westcott v. UAMS; Claim No. 190008 


 


Please see attached link with Westcott’s Exhibits A-U for the hearing scheduled March 1, 2024. 


For convenience, the exhibits are: 


 


A. Video Footage of Incident 


B. Westcott, Sebrena- Injury Pic 1 


C. Westcott, Sebrena- Injury Pic 2 


D. Westcott, Sebrena- Injury Pic 3 


E. Westcott, Sebrena- Injury Pic 4 


F. Westcott, Sebrena- Injury Pic 5 


G. Westcott, Sebrena- Injury Pic 6 


H. Westcott, Sebrena- UAMS Bills 


I. Westcott, Sebrena- UAMS Records 


J. Westcott, Sebrena- River Valley Therapy and Sports Medicine Bills 


K. Westcott, Sebrena- River Valley Therapy and Sports Medicine Records 


L. Westcott, Sebrena- Baptist Bills 


M. Westcott, Sebrena- Baptist Records 


N. Westcott, Sebrena- Lost wages 


O. Westcott, Sebrena- Return to Work 


P. Westcott, Sebrena- Signed Affidavit  


Q. Signed Affidavit- Morehead 


R. Westcott, Sebrena- Report 


S. Westcott, Sebrena- 2019 Tax Transcript 


T. Westcott, Sebrena- 2018 Fed. Taxes 


U. Westcott, Sebrena- 2018 State Taxes 


Please let me know if you need anything else prior to the hearing Friday.  


 


Sincerely yours, 


 


/s/ CG 


 


Charsie Gordon 


Attorney at Law 







 


 
 







week on Friday, March 1 beginning at noon. I am moving this hearing to that date. Please advise
ASAP if that date will not work (although I realize that today is a state holiday, so I am not expecting
anyone to respond today). Apologies for this inconvenience.
 
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
To: Robinson, Sherri SLRobinson@uams.edu; Charsie Gordon charsiegordon@taylorkinglaw.com
Cc: MCGHEE, SHELLY SMcghee@uams.edu
Subject: NEW ZOOM INVITATION: Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008
 
Charsie and Sherri, below is the new Zoom invitation for February 23. Let me know if there are any
questions.
 
Charsie, if you can send me your exhibits ahead of time, that would be helpful so that the
commissioners have them and can pull them up on their computers. You’re welcome to use the
“share screen” feature on Zoom, too.
 
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
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82875819369?pwd=sAx2mzuxWUxcBcDIqyfpWzDupBsI6k.1
 
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
 
I have no objection to rescheduling. I am available on the morning of February 23 but not the
afternoon. Also, I will need to confirm that date with my witness.
 
 
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
To: Kathryn Irby <Kathryn.Irby@arkansas.gov>; Robinson, Sherri <SLRobinson@uams.edu>; ASCC
Pleadings <ASCCPleadings@arkansas.gov>
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

H. Westcott, Sebrena-  

I. Westcott, Sebrena-  

J. Westcott, Sebrena-  

K. Westcott, Sebrena-  

L. Westcott, Sebrena-  

M. Westcott, Sebrena-  

N. Westcott, Sebrena- Lost wages 

O. Westcott, Sebrena- Return to Work 

P. Westcott, Sebrena- Signed Affidavit  

Q. Signed Affidavit- Morehead 

R. Westcott, Sebrena- Report 

S. Westcott, Sebrena-  

T. Westcott, Sebrena-  

U. Westcott, Sebrena-  

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
Subject: Re: MARCH 1 ZOOM INVITATION: Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008
Date: Tuesday, July 9, 2024 3:52:44 PM

Thank you for the update. I appreciate it.

      
Charsie Gordon
Attorney at Law | Taylor King Law
820 W 3rd Street, Little Rock, AR 72201
P: (870) 246-0505   F: (501)712-2543
charsiegordon@taylorkinglaw.com | www.taylorkinglaw.com

From: Kathryn Irby <kathryn.irby@arkansas.gov>
Sent: Tuesday, July 9, 2024 3:26 PM
To: Charsie Gordon <charsiegordon@taylorkinglaw.com>; Robinson, Sherri
<SLRobinson@uams.edu>
Cc: MCGHEE, SHELLY <SMcghee@uams.edu>
Subject: RE: MARCH 1 ZOOM INVITATION: Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008
 
Charsie, the delay is on my end due to a record-breaking year on the number of claims filed at
the Commission (we had almost 400 additional claims filed in FY24 over FY23). It has
everything delayed. I expect to have an order transmitted to the parties this month.
 
Kathryn
 
From: Charsie Gordon <charsiegordon@taylorkinglaw.com> 
Sent: Monday, July 8, 2024 3:46 PM
To: Kathryn Irby <kathryn.irby@arkansas.gov>; Robinson, Sherri <SLRobinson@uams.edu>
Cc: MCGHEE, SHELLY <SMcghee@uams.edu>
Subject: Re: MARCH 1 ZOOM INVITATION: Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008

 
Director Irby,
 
I was checking in to see if you may have an update for me to pass along from our hearing in
March. Thanks so much.
 
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
Sent: Tuesday, February 20, 2024 1:09 PM
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

968

https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kcwKghuaW
https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kcwKghuaW
mailto:SLRobinson@uams.edu
mailto:SLRobinson@uams.edu
mailto:charsiegordon@taylorkinglaw.com
mailto:charsiegordon@taylorkinglaw.com
mailto:kathryn.irby@arkansas.gov
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
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Furldefense.com%2Fv3%2F__http%3A%2F%2Fwww.taylorkinglaw.com__%3B!!LFqOYw!spfnyGNxZroOhMaDtjoeQUz9IOGqY15cK8sR9_dyHt5Yc1oseRtvzZoghYB5DF00JeY3e0VjGwAXDb1Egeq2uMbjEoaUpP8%24&data=05%7C02%7Ckathryn.irby%40arkansas.gov%7C326aac551d7b4c7c2ad008dca0591101%7C5ec1d8f0cb624000b3278e63b0547048%7C0%7C0%7C638561551633289580%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=bi9l5PHwCrkLUYFCs7oIfMsSWVhHfMUgjZnvcVdhVok%3D&reserved=0
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

claim of Sebrena Westcott (the “Claimant”) against the University of Arkansas for Medical 

Sciences (the “Respondent” or UAMS). At the hearing held March 1, 2024, Charsie Gordon 

appeared on Claimant’s behalf, and Sherri L. Robinson appeared on behalf of Respondent. The 

Commission’s hearing panel included Commissioners Solomon Graves, Henry Kinslow as chair, 

and Sylvester Smith.1 

Procedural History, Prehearing Matters, and Witness Testimony 

1. Claimant filed her claim against Respondent in July 2018, seeking an unspecified 

amount of damages related to injuries suffered by Claimant after she tripped on a rug in 

Respondent’s emergency room doorway. 

2. Respondent filed an answer denying liability. 

3. Claimant’s claim was in abeyance from May 2019 until September 2020 to allow 

Claimant to resolve an insurance dispute. 

4. Following the abeyance, the parties conducted discovery. 

5. On May 10, 2021, the Commission entered an order substituting Ms. Gordon as 

counsel of record for Claimant. 

 
1 Commissioner Dee Holcomb was present at the hearing in an observational capacity only. 
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6. Following the conclusion of discovery, Respondent filed a motion for summary 

judgment which was denied by the Commission on March 27, 2023, following a hearing on the 

motion. 

7. At the outset of the hearing, the parties stated their agreement with Claimant’s 

injuries, medical bills, and lost wages, such that the question of liability was the only remaining 

issue for the hearing. 

8. The parties’ exhibits were admitted without objection. 

Testimony of Claimant 

9. Claimant’s counsel called Claimant to testify. 

10. After being sworn in, Claimant testified that she is a grandmother and has worked 

as a sign language interpreter for over 30 years. She is nationally certified and licensed in Arkansas, 

Oregon, and New Hampshire to work as a sign language interpreter. 

11. On September 16, 2017, Claimant went to Respondent’s emergency room to 

provide interpretation services for a patient. Before that day, she had been there previously to 

interpret. She parked near the emergency room entrance. As Claimant walked into the emergency 

room, she took her watch off so that she could go through security. The doors were already open. 

Claimant’s foot caught on the rug, and she went down facefirst.  

 

 

12.  
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13.  

 

 

 

 

 

14.  

 

 

 

15. Referring to Claimant’s affidavit executed in July 2022, which was introduced as 

Claimant’s Exhibit P, Claimant testified that she watched the video of her fall. She saw two men 

walk in before her and noticed that the sliding doors were unable to close because of the “lip” on 

the rug. Referring to the UAMS report of this incident, which was introduced as Claimant’s Exhibit 

R, Claimant stated that she does not know who she talked with while she was in the emergency 

room. 

16. Upon a question from Commissioner Smith as to what Respondent could have done 

differently to keep this incident from happening, Claimant stated that the rug should have been 

moved away from the doors or removed entirely. 
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17. Upon a question from Commissioner Smith as to what Claimant was doing 

immediately before the fall, Claimant stated that she was watching where she was going and was 

done fidgeting with her watch and purse. She was facing toward the security desk. 

18. Upon a question from Commissioner Smith, Claimant stated that she did not know 

how the man in front of her kept from falling. 

19. On cross-examination, Claimant testified that she is familiar with sliding doors 

generally but has not inspected the technical aspects of Respondent’s emergency room doors. 

Claimant has not tested the doors or hired anyone to test the doors. Claimant did not witness anyone 

else walk through the doors before she did because she was coming around the corner. Other than 

her interpretation of the video, she does not know whether anyone else tripped on the rug.  

 

 

20. On redirect, referring to Claimant’s medical records introduced as Claimant’s 

Exhibit M,  

. 

21. On re-cross,  

 

.  

Testimony of Sonya Hart 

22. Respondent’s counsel called Sonya Hart to testify. 

23. After being sworn in, Ms. Hart testified that she is Respondent’s director of 

occupational health and safety. She oversees and investigates falls in public spaces and makes sure 

that Respondent is in compliance with federal and state regulations. 
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24. When Ms. Hart is notified of a fall, if it is the same day of the incident, she will 

investigate or send someone to investigate what contributed to the fall. She will also looks for 

videos of the incident. 

25. She is familiar with Claimant’s fall on September 16, 2017. Ms. Hart testified that 

the fall happened in the evening, so she learned of it the next morning. Ms. Hart watched 30 

minutes before the fall and 20 to 30 minutes after the fall. She did not see anyone else fall or 

stumble in that time. The Commission granted Claimant’s objection to any testimony from Ms. 

Hart related to any part of the video not provided to Claimant. 

26. Ms. Hart testified that a man walked through the doorway and kicked up the edge 

of the rug. Another man walked through and stepped over the hump in the rug. Five seconds after 

that, Claimant’s foot caught on the rug, and Claimant fell. 

27. Ms. Hart did not receive any reports of fall in that area in the previous three years. 

28. Regarding Claimant’s statement that the rug was over the threshold, such that the 

doors were kept open, Ms. Hart tested this out by placing a rug over the threshold, and the doors 

still closed. Respondent played the video of Ms. Hart’s test without objection. For the doors to be 

open on the day Claimant fell, the doors must have been kept open by a button. 

29. On cross-examination, Ms. Hart testified that she did not prepare the incident 

report. She is not in charge of the automatic doors and does not have any qualifications regarding 

the automatic doors. She has seen the video of Claimant falling. Ms. Hart recalled the name of the 

person who completed the incident report, but that person was not from Ms. Hart’s department. 

Ms. Hart did not have any proof or knowledge that the automatic doors were turned off and did 

not know when the automatic doors might be turned off. When Ms. Hart conducted the test, she 

laid a corner of the rug over the threshold and laid the rug flat. She did not try to lay the whole rug 
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over the threshold because she was trying to put the rug the way it was during the incident. In 

watching the video of Claimant’s fall, Ms. Hart agreed that the rug was not positioned the same 

way it was in her test. Ms. Hart saw the first man come through and catch his foot on the rug. She 

saw the second man come through the doorway and brush his foot on the rug. She could not say 

whether the positioning of the rug in the video would keep the doors from closing. Ms. Hart did 

not know how long the rug sat in that position in the doorway. She watched the extended version 

of the video the morning after the incident. Ms. Hart stated that when she found the contributing 

cause (the rug being kicked up), she did not save the rest of the video. She does not always have 

the exact time of an incident, which is why she goes back 30 minutes. Ms. Hart agreed that the rug 

was over the threshold at the beginning of the video. 

30. Upon a question from Commissioner Graves as to whether those doors were 

serviced between the date of the incident and the date of the test, Ms. Hart stated that she did not 

know. 

31. Upon a question from Commissioner Graves as to who is responsible for making 

sure that the emergency room area is picked up, Respondent stated that environmental services 

would be responsible. 

32. Upon a question from Commissioner Graves, Respondent’s counsel stated that the 

records of environmental services would not have been maintained this long but that environmental 

services would have been in the vicinity during that day. Respondent’s counsel noted that the rug 

was kicked up one minute before Claimant fell. 

Closing Arguments 

33. Claimant argued that this incident changed her whole life. She lost 22 months of 

her life due to this injury. Claimant argued that the hump in the rug existed before the first man 
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walked through the door in the video and that the two men who walked through the doorway before 

Claimant were luckier than Claimant. Claimant’s Exhibit R shows the wear and tear on the rug. 

Claimant stated that if Respondent had provided more video, Claimant would be able to show how 

long the rug was in that position or how it came to be in that position. Respondent should have 

noticed the rug. The men who walked through the doorway before did not create the hazard. 

Claimant specified that she is asking for a total of $125,000 in damages, which includes $80,000 

in lost wages, the remaining medical balances, and approximately $65 per day in pain and 

suffering. 

34. Upon a question from Commissioner Smith, Claimant stated that she had a  

 

35. Upon a question from Commissioner Graves, Claimant stated that while she used 

to work five days per week, now she has to work two days, take a break, then work another two 

days. Claimant has to take frequent breaks.  

. 

36. Upon a question from Commissioner Graves, Claimant stated that she provides 

interpretation services in a variety of venues but does not interpret at concerts or courts because of 

the time needed and her need for breaks. 

37. Respondent argued that Claimant has the burden of proof and that UAMS had to 

use ordinary care to maintain the premises in a reasonably safe condition. Respondent argued that 

there is no duty to guard against the merely possible harm but only against the probable harm. The 

fact that Claimant fell is not an automatic finding of negligence. Respondent argued that there were 

no other falls in the previous three years and that Claimant only has a theory as to whether the rug 

is holding the door open. Respondent stated that the AutoZone and Lock cases are on point. 
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38. In rebuttal, Claimant argued that there was no video footage in AutoZone or Lock 

and that it was impossible to recreate the conditions that caused Claimant’s fall. Claimant reiterated 

that the hazard was already there when the first man in the video walked through the doorway. 

Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law 

 Based upon a review of the claim file, the testimony and evidence presented by the parties, 

and the law of the State of Arkansas, the Commission unanimously finds as follows: 

39. The Commission finds that it has jurisdiction to hear this claim pursuant to Ark. 

Code Ann. § 19-10-204. 

40. The Commission finds that Claimant is alleging negligence on the part of 

Respondent. In order to prevail on a negligence claim, Claimant must prove that (1) Respondent 

owed a duty to Claimant, (2) Respondent breached the duty owed to Claimant, and (3) 

Respondent’s breach was the proximate cause of Claimant’s damages. Lloyd v. Pier W. Prop. 

Owners Ass’n, 2015 Ark. App. 487, *4, 470 S.W.3d 293, 297. 

41. As to Arkansas law regarding duty, the Commission finds that Claimant was an 

invitee, such that Respondent had a duty to use “ordinary care to maintain its premises in a 

reasonably safe condition.” House v. Wal-Mart Stores, Inc., 316 Ark. 221, 223, 872 S.W.2d 52, 

52–53 (1994). The Commission further finds that Respondent’s duty extends only to foreseeable 

dangers. Benton v. Shuler Drilling Co., Inc., 316 Ark. 101, 112, 871 S.W.2d 552, 558 (1994) 

(“Foreseeability is a necessary ingredient of actionable negligence in this state”). 

42. Spoliation has been defined by the Arkansas Supreme Court as “the intentional 

destruction of evidence and when it is established, [the] fact finger may draw [an] inference that 

[the] evidence destroyed was unfavorable to [the] party responsible for its spoliation.” Goff v. 

Harold Ives Trucking Co., Inc., 342 Ark. 143, 146, 27 S.W.3d 387, 388 (2000) (citing Black’s 
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Law Dictionary 1410 (6th ed. 1990)). However, Arkansas courts do not require a specific finding 

of bad faith by the spoliator. Russellville Holdings, LLC v. Peters, 2017 Ark. App. 561, *6, 533 

S.W.3d 119, 123. 

43. The Commission finds that Respondent’s failure to save enough video footage to 

show how long the rug had been laying over the threshold constitutes spoliation. The Commission 

appreciates Ms. Hart’s candor about the dissimilarities between her test and the condition of the 

rug at the time of Claimant’s fall. While the Commission does not find that there was any bad faith 

involved in the spoliation of the video, it will infer that the rest of the video footage would have 

been unfavorable evidence to Respondent. Goff, 342 Ark. At 146, 27 S.W.3d at 388. As such, in 

light of such inference, the Commission finds that Respondent failed to use ordinary care to 

maintain its premises in a reasonably safe condition and that such failure was the proximate cause 

of Claimant’s fall. The Commission further finds, in light of such inference, that Claimant’s fall 

was foreseeable. 

44. The Commission herein awards Claimant $55,000 in lost wages, $2,576.78 in 

remaining medical balances as stated in the parties’ joint stipulation of facts, and $30,000 in pain 

and suffering, for a total award of $87,576.78. Pursuant to Ark. Code Ann. § 19-10-215(b), the 

Commission refers this total award of $87,576.78 to the General Assembly for review, approval, 

and, if approved, placement on an appropriations bill.  

  

E.1

985



10 
 

IT IS SO ORDERED. 

       
      _______________________________________ 

ARKANSAS STATE CLAIMS COMMISSION 
Solomon Graves 

      
      _______________________________________ 

ARKANSAS STATE CLAIMS COMMISSION 
Henry Kinslow, chair 

 
      _______________________________________ 

ARKANSAS STATE CLAIMS COMMISSION 
Sylvester Smith 

 
      DATE: August 1, 2024 
 
 

Notice(s) which may apply to your claim 

 

(1) A party has forty (40) days from transmission of this Order to file a Motion for Reconsideration or a Notice of Appeal 
with the Claims Commission. Ark. Code Ann. § 19-10-211(a)(1). If a Motion for Reconsideration is denied, that 
party then has twenty (20) days from transmission of the denial of the Motion for Reconsideration to file a Notice of 
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
Date: Thursday, August 1, 2024 12:09:00 PM
Attachments: Westcott -- hearing -- 190008 -- order.pdf

Ms. Gordon and Ms. Robinson, please see attached order entered by the Commission.
 
Thanks,
Kathryn Irby
 
 
Kathryn Irby
Arkansas State Claims Commission
101 East Capitol Avenue, Suite 410
Little Rock, Arkansas 72201
(501) 682-2822
 
 

E.1

987

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



1 
 


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


Claimant’s foot caught on the rug, and she went down facefirst. Claimant had contusions on her 


face, nose, and both knees. She was bleeding profusely. Her arm was dislocated and stretched, and 


she had a radial head fracture. 


12. After Claimant fell, she thinks that a security guard got her onto a gurney and into 


the emergency room. She was admitted, then imaging was done. Claimant was sedated before her 


arm was relocated and decompressed. Before she was discharged, she was given a temporary cast, 


a sling, and antibiotic ointment to put on her abrasions. Claimant identified the x-ray of her arm as 
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Claimant’s Exhibit E, a picture of her face with a broken nose as Claimant’s Exhibit D, a picture 


of her bruised knee as Claimant’s Exhibit B, and a picture of her bruised elbow as Claimant’s 


Exhibit C. 


13. Claimant had surgery on her elbow in June 2019, approximately 22 months after 


her injury. Because she had a piece of bone in the joint, Claimant had to have an immobilized sling 


prior to her surgery. This kept her from driving because her vehicle at the time had a manual 


transmission. This sling also kept her being able to dress herself, hold a grandchild, do household 


chores, play the fiddle, or crochet and knit. Claimant still does not have full feeling in the last two 


fingers of her hand. 


14. The sling also kept Claimant from being able to work as an interpreter because she 


cannot do sign language one-handed. Claimant unsuccessfully looked for other work. Claimant 


referred to the doctor’s note introduced as Claimant’s Exhibit O, stating that she was not released 


to work until July 25, 2019. 


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


her interpretation of the video, she does not know whether anyone else tripped on the rug. There 


was a delay in her surgery, but Dr. Frazier recommended surgery in January 2018, as specified in 


Respondent’s Exhibit No. 4. 


20. On redirect, referring to Claimant’s medical records introduced as Claimant’s 


Exhibit M, Claimant stated that her surgery was approved by her health insurance in May 2019. 


Claimant would have preferred to have the surgery sooner than that. 


21. On re-cross, Claimant stated that she asked Baptist and UAMS to do the surgery. 


Claimant’s counsel confirmed that Claimant’s doctor, Dr. Frazier, has privileges at several 


hospitals and that Claimant has small, remaining balances from both UAMS and Baptist.  


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


34. Upon a question from Commissioner Smith, Claimant stated that she had a balance 


owed to UAMS, which does not include physical therapy or the Baptist remaining balance. 


35. Upon a question from Commissioner Graves, Claimant stated that while she used 


to work five days per week, now she has to work two days, take a break, then work another two 


days. Claimant has to take frequent breaks. She has a nerve problem because the dislocation 


stretched the nerve. She has functionality but some numbness. 


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
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Westcott v. UAMS, Claim No. 190008-UAMS Notice of Appeal.pdf

Dear Directory Irby,
 
Attached for filing is a Notice of Appeal on behalf of the University of Arkansas for Medical Sciences
in the above referenced matter. Please let me know if you need additional information at this time.
 
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


 


RESPONDENT’S NOTICE OF APPEAL 
 


 Comes now Respondent, University of Arkansas for Medical Sciences 


(UAMS), by and through its undersigned counsel, and for its Notice of Appeal, states 


as follows: 


1. On August 1, 2024, the Commission issued an order finding in favor 


of Claimant and awarding her $55,000 in lost wages, $2,576.78 in 


remaining medical balances, and $30,000 in pain and suffering for a 


total award of $87,576.78. 


2. Respondent submits that the finding in favor of Claimant is not 


supported by the evidence and should be reversed by the General 


Assembly. 


3. As a result, Respondent appeals the August 1, 2024 Order to the 


General Assembly pursuant to Ark. Code Ann. § 19-10-211(a)(1)(A). 


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


was served on claimant herein by emailing a copy of same this 28th day of August, 


2024 to the following: 
 


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
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